
Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 25 February 2019 1

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY

Telephone:  (01874) 624437
Plas y Ffynnon
Cambrian Way
Brecon
Powys
LD3 7HP

Dear Member

A meeting of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in THE 
CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON 
LD3 7HP ON MONDAY, 25TH FEBRUARY, 2019 AT 1.30 PM when your 
attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely

Julian Atkins

Chief Executive

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY FILMS AND
WEBCASTS ALL ITS PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE  - 

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/ 

Fire Evacuation Advice

In the event of a fire, please exit the building via the main staircase,

and assemble in the car park at Assembly Point 3

1 CORRESPONDENCE 

            To receive and consider the attached Schedule of 
Correspondence and any recommendations thereon (below).

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Public Document Pack

http://www.breconbeacons.public-i.tv/core/


Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 25 February 2019 2

To receive any declarations of interest from members relating to items 
on the agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to 
the attendance sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally 
and in writing, specifying the nature of the interest.
 
If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure 
that you inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so 
that this can be recorded in the minutes

 

3 MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)

To receive the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 26 
October 2018 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them as a correct record

4 MINUTES OF ASC IN AGM 30 JULY (Pages 11 - 12)

5 ACTION TRACKING (Pages 13 - 16)

6 PUBLIC SPEAKING SCHEME 

To give the public an opportunity to address the committee in line with 
the notice required under the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme.

 

A: Budget Monitoring

7 BUDGET MONITORING Q3 2018/19 (Pages 17 - 34)

B: Scrutiny

C: Performance and Risk

8 CORPORATE PLAN PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR QUARTER 3 
(Pages 35 - 42)

9 RISK REGISTER UPDATE QUARTER 3 (Pages 43 - 46)

10 INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE AND REPORTS (Pages 47 - 112)

11 AUDIT PERFORMANCE CERTIFICATE 2017/18 (Pages 113 - 122)



Audit and Scrutiny Committee  - 25 February 2019 3

12 COMPLIMENTS/COMPLAINTS/FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 
(Pages 123 - 136)

13 GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY REGISTERS:  MEMBERS AND 
OFFICERS (Pages 137 - 148)

D: Other Business

14 OTHER BUSINESS 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE

1. To receive apologies for absence

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chairman, is of such urgency 
as to warrant consideration.

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Julia Gruffydd 
julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk or Angharad Hawkes angharad.hawkes@beacons-
npa.gov.uk  

mailto:julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk
mailto:angharad.hawkes@beacons-npa.gov.uk
mailto:angharad.hawkes@beacons-npa.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 26 October 2018 

 

 

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON FRIDAY, 26TH OCTOBER, 2018 
 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Blaenau Gwent 

 

 

 

Powys 

 

 
 

Monmouthshire 

 

Cllr A Webb (Chair) 

 

Merthyr Tydfil 

 

 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taff 

 

Cllr G Thomas 

 

Torfaen 

 

 

 

Members appointed by the Welsh Government 

 

Mr Ian Rowat (Deputy Chair), Mr James Marsden and Sue Holden 

 

In Attendance 

 

Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive 

Elaine Standen, Finance Manager 

Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager 

Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager 

Mrs Jayne Foxley, Monitoring Officer 

 

Apologies 
 

Cllr A James 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 26 October 2018 

 

 

42/18 Correspondence  

 

Apologies were noted. 

  

The Chair advised that on the day of the next meeting, 1 February 2019, a workshop 

would be held with external and internal audit, as agreed following the last meeting. The 

committee meeting would move to the afternoon.  Members welcomed the opportunity 

to discuss the relationship with audit but felt they should prepare for the meeting. The 

Chief Executive advised that he had received some useful information from internal audit 

on a Board Assurance Framework which the Management Team would need to consider. 

It was agreed to hold a short meeting after the Authority meeting on 2 November. 

 

43/18 Declarations of Interest  

 

Mr I Rowat declared a personal interest in respect of item 13 due to being a member of 

the Open Spaces Society. 

 

44/18 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny 

Committee held on 13 July 2018 be approved and the 

Chair authorised to sign them as a true record. 

 

45/18 Public Speaking Scheme  

 

There were no requests to speak. 

 

46/18 Action Tracking  

 

Members reviewed outstanding actions from the Authority and Audit and Scrutiny 

Committee.   

 

47/18 Internal Audit - Verbal Update  

 

The Finance Manager advised that the first audit block report had been presented to 

Management Team  and actions agreed, but this had missed the deadline for the agenda 

and would be presented to the next meeting of Audit and Scrutiny Committee on 1 

February 2019.  She offered to circulate this to members of the committee for their 

information, as well as a progress report from the auditors.  A member welcomed this as 

he felt it would help them scope the meeting with audit. 

  

The second audit block was now under way reviewing governance, internal controls and 

partnerships.  These would also be presented to the meeting on 1 February.  As far as the 

Finance Officer was aware there were no significant issues identified. 

  

   

 

48/18 Budget Monitoring Quarter 2 2018-19  

 

Page 6



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 3 26 October 2018 

 

Members considered the budget details for the end of quarter two.  The Finance Manager 

highlighted the high percentage of budget committed due to multi-year projects which 

showed as commitments even when not yet due.  The other factor was the delay in 

receiving grant payments for projects, which had had an impact on the Authority’s 

cashflow, although this had been mitigated by the additional funding from Welsh 

Government.  This would need careful monitoring in future. 

  

A member wondered whether the Welsh Local Government Association could take this 

up with grant aiding bodies.  The Chief Executive advised that he would raise this with the 

Authority’s representative and also with other National Parks.  While the Authority could 

cover short term funding gaps through the use of Reserves he had asked the Finance 

Officer to keep him informed. 

  

A member was relaxed about the high level of commitment but was more nervous about 

the cash flow and asked whether the Authority had sufficient confidence in its project 

management skills to reflect the emerging shape of the organisation. The Chief Executive 

felt that there was an acceptable level of skill but this needed to be better, and he was 

confident that the appointment of the Delivery Director would help with this.  He was 

also discussing the need to strengthen project management training.  A gantt chart had 

been prepared of all projects so areas could be identified where assurance was needed. 
  

In response to a question the Finance Manager advised that the level of reserves was high 

at present and the Authority had needed to use less than anticipated this year.  A member 

warned that it only needed one contract to go wrong or costs to increase. 

  

RESOLVED:  To note the report. 

  

 

49/18 Performance report Q2 2018/19  

 

The IT and Systems Manager presented the performance report for quarter two which 

contained a higher level of data than quarter one.  Some recommendations from the 

recent internal audit had already been implemented. 

  

A member said that he could not support this report as it reported against process rather 

than outcomes and was not supported by data.  He cited landscape and biodiversity as an 

example where so little of the research done could be applied to policy development or 

actions on the ground, leaving the cost benefit calculation in doubt.  The Authority 

needed to be better at setting outcome based indicators.  

  

A member who was new to the Authority agreed about outcomes but said that these 

were notoriously hard to define and it would be helpful to see the priorities highlighted. 

  

The Chief Executive pointed out that the reporting was against the Authority’s Corporate 

Plan objectives and at present there was no mechanism for looking at the outcomes, 

although there was useful information in the internal audit report about how to 

demonstrate success.  The IT and Systems Manager took the member’s point about 

prioritisation but the performance was measured against actions; at this time in the year it 

would be expected that 50% would be completed.  He was currently having discussions 

Page 7



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 4 26 October 2018 

 

with the Management Team and expected to see an improvement in definitions in next 

year’s Corporate Plan. 

  

A member felt that the Authority needed to be in the mindset that saw the annual 

measures in the Corporate Plan as milestones in the delivery of longer term outcomes in 

the National Park Management Plan.  The officer agreed and said that looking at the 

measurable actions was a consequence of interim reporting but that the Authority needed 

to look at the ‘so what’ as well. 

  

RECOMMENDATION:  To note the report. 

 

50/18 Risk Register  

 

The IT and Systems Manager presented high level risks in line with a recommendation 

from the Internal Auditors and advised that further work was being done on the sources 

of assurance.  He expressed some reservations about the scoring which suggested a lack 

of control by officers, which was not the case.  Members welcomed the opportunity to 

contribute to a discussion but a member highlighted one omission, the lack of a 

comprehensive evidence base, which he felt was a significant risk in terms of the 

Authority’s purposes and duty.  The Authority could counter this risk by investing 
resources long term.  The officer referred to the Research Prospectus which was enabling 

the Authority to work towards achieving a better evidence base.  The member felt that 

this did not help delivery on the ground and reiterated the importance of procuring the 

necessary evidence.  The officer accepted the gaps but felt that the Research Prospectus 

was a way of engaging with partners as well as gathering evidence.  The Chief Executive 

advised that he was actively working with partners through the Mega-Catchment project 

in order to access data.  He was as keen as members to address the gaps in data even if 

more resources needed to be allocated.  The member thanked the CEO and the officer 

for their assurances and commitment.  He would like to have an evidence programme as a 

checklist to work through. 

  

In response to questions the officer went through the scoring system and advised that 

there was a comprehensive database behind it, which was not obvious from the snapshot 

in the report.  There was some debate about whether it would be useful to show a pre 

and post mitigation score on high level risks. 

  

A member highlighted the need for more explanation of the highest level risks.  The 

officer explained the process whereby directorate risks were identified and aggregated up 

to an Authority level.  Using Planning risks as an example he highlighted concerns about 

the personal safety of staff which had resulted in recommendations to the Management 

Team to set up a register of sites and individuals, using models from other authorities, 

including the police.  The Chief Executive advised that the risks relating to staffing levels in 

Enforcement were referenced in the Annual Monitoring Report to Planning, Access and 

Rights of Way Committee but agreed that the timescales needed review.  Referring to the 

risk of members overturning planning recommendations he said there was no suggestion 

of reducing the number of site visits but members needed to recognise that this might 

have an impact on determination rates. 

  

RESOLVED:  To note the report. 

  

Page 8



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 5 26 October 2018 

 

  

  

 

51/18 Complaints and Freedom of Information  

 

Members reviewed complaints and Freedom of Information requests.  They asked for the 

regular reports on compliments to be reinstated. 

  

RESOLVED:  To note the reports. 

 

52/18 Access to information  

 

RESOLVED:  to exclude the press and public from the meeting 

during consideration of item 25 in accordance with section 

100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, on the 

grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 

information as defined in paragraphs 12 13 and 14 of Schedule 

12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

53/18 Other Business  

 
The Chair advised that there was no further business and that the public part of the 

meeting was concluded. 

 

54/18 Confidential Complaints Item  

 

The Chair introduced John Parsons, the Deputy Monitoring Officer, who presented his 

report and recommendations on a longstanding and complex complaint. 

  

A member had prepared some comments on the report which would be circulated to all 

members of the committee. 

  

The Chief Executive accepted the recommendations and advised that some of these had 

already been implemented.  He confirmed that a report had been prepared for the 

Authority meeting on 2 November and members asked him to emphasise the resolution 

of practical issues and process, as well as discharging all the recommendations. 

  

RESOLVED:   

  

a)  To note the report from the Deputy Monitoring Officer  

b)  That the Chief Executive should report the matter to 

the Authority on 2 November 2018 setting out the 

actions and the cost of implementing 

recommendations, as well as lessons learned and 

improvements to process. 

 

 

 

 

Signed as a correct record 

Page 9



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 6 26 October 2018 

 

Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Page 10



 
 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 1 30 July 2018 

 

 

MINUTES OF BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY AUDIT AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD AT CONFERENCE ROOM, PLAS Y FFYNNON, 

CAMBRIAN WAY, BRECON LD3 7HP ON MONDAY, 30TH JULY, 2018 
 

 

 

PRESENT: 

 

Blaenau Gwent 

 

Cllr J Hill 

 

Powys 

 

Cllr McIntosh 
 

Monmouthshire 

 

Cllr A Webb (Chair) 

 

Merthyr Tydfil 

 

 

 

Rhondda Cynon Taff 

 

Cllr G Thomas 

 

Torfaen 

 

 

 

Members appointed by the Welsh Government 

 

Mr Ian Rowat (Deputy Chair) and Mr James Marsden 

 

In Attendance 

 

Mr Julian Atkins, Chief Executive 

Elaine Standen, Finance Manager 

Mr Paul Funnell, IT and Systems Manager 

Mrs Julia Gruffydd, Democratic Services Manager 

Mrs Jayne Foxley, Monitoring Officer 

 

Apologies 
 

Cllr A James 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



  
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 2 30 July 2018 

 

 

39/18 Correspondence  

 

Apologies were noted. 

 

40/18 Election of Chair  

 

RESOLVED:  That Cllr A Webb be elected Chair of the 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee until the next Annual 

General Meeting of the Authority. 

 

41/18 Election of Deputy Chair  

 

RESOLVED:  That Mr I Rowat be elected Deputy Chair of 

the Audit and Scrutiny Committee until the next Annual 

General Meeting of the Authority. 

 

 

 

 
Signed as a correct record 

Chairman of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

Page 12



Committee Date Minute No Agenda item title Decision text Action Deadline Date Owner Comments Status

National Park Authority 28/07/2017 10:00 10 SDF Approval over £30,000 Arrange for Big Pit apprentices to give a 

presentation to the Authority

Helen Roderick 27/09/2018:  - Liaising with Julia re possible 

dates for this visit.

to do

National Park Authority 28/07/2017 10:00 6 Chief Executive's Announcements Further report on hydro to NPA to include 

cost/benefit and maintenance costs plus site 

visit when appropriate

Mr Julian Atkins 04/07/2018: Status changed from To do to 

In progress - Awaiting FITS payment(s) to 

inform income profile.

Daily email reminders turned off.

12/10/2018:  - Aftercare and Defects period 

complete. Report in preparation

17/01/2019:  - Report scheduled to come to 

February NPA

In progress

National Park Authority 10/11/2017 10:00 13 Member Champion Reports Schedule Bethan Price to do sweep up 

session with members

30/11/17 00:00 Helen Roderick/ 

Julia Gruffydd

27/09/2018:  - Julia to organise with new 

WLO

To do

National Park Authority 08/12/2017 10:00 10 Information and Data Security Policy Schedule quarterly reports to NPA on IT 

incidents and risk (on Modgov)

22/12/17 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell 13/04/2018: Deadline date now 31/05/2018 - 

The deadline date has been changed from 

22/12/2017 to 31/05/2018

The deadline date has been changed from 

31/05/2018 to 31/07/2018

Postponed due to officer and committee 

workload

to do

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 11 Affordable Housing Working Group 

Recommendation - Award of 

Commuted Sums

Arrange legal agreement with Melin Homes 

and transfer of money / Advise PCC of NPA 

decision

31/03/18 00:00 Mrs Helen 

Lucoq

16/04/2018:  - Further information has been 

requested from Melin Homes in terms of 

timeframes relating to purchase of land, 

submission of planning application etc.

In progress

National Park Authority 09/02/2018 10:00 13 Localised Boundary Encroachments 

CL18 West (southern Fringe)

Investigate scale of other boundary 

encroachments and report back to NPA

31/03/18 00:00 Mr Julian Atkins 16/04/2018:  To be programmed

17/01/2019:  - progress delayed due to staff 

capacity and three property matters having 

to take precedence in work programme

delayed

National Park Authority 20/04/2018 10:00 12 Appointment of a Data Protection 

Officer

Consider whether changes to the Scheme of 

Delegation or working protocols are required 

in order to establish the independence of the 

role of DPO

31/05/18 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell The deadline date has been changed from 

31/05/2018 to 31/07/2018

to do

National Park Authority 20/04/2018 10:00 9 Wales Audit Annual Improvement 

Report

Work on diagram linking policies to 

governance and delivery (raised under AIR 

report on NPA on 20 April)

04/05/18 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell to do

National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 15 Waterfalls Car Parking Plan Publish Waterfalls car parking consultation 

and submit agenda item for February NPA

16/11/18 00:00 Richard Tyler to do

NPA

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 5

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31806
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5156#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31787#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31787#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=31787#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5158#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34363#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5159#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5159
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34920#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34920#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36981#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5340#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36987
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=36987
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39045
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39045
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39045
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39045
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5357#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39041
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39041
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=39041
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46359
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46359


National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 16 Planning Annual Performance Report Ensure alignment between Welsh Govt KPIs 

and those reported to PAROW -ref James 

Marsden's comments

30/11/18 00:00 Ms Tracy 

Nettleton

to do

National Park Authority 02/11/2018 10:00 26 Foel Deg Boundary Resolution 

Solutions

Bring further report on progress against Foel 

Deg recommendations to NPA next year (by 

June 2019?)

28/06/19 00:00 Dr Paul 

Sinnadurai

to do

National Park Authority 14/12/2018 10:00 15 Authority Policy on Cost of Care 

Allowance

Arrange meeting with IRPW and schedule 

policy for future NPA

31/01/19 00:00 Mrs Julia 

Gruffydd

17/01/2019:  Awaiting request from IRPW 

about a date for the meeting.

In progress

National Park Authority 14/12/2018 10:00 7 Revision to Financial Regulations Finalise document, get translated and put on 

website via Modgov Libary

18/01/19 00:00 Elaine Standen

Angharad 

Hawkes

17/01/19 - Waiting for the Welsh translation 

to be returned before publishing on the 

website. 

In progress

P
age 14

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46385#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5389#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46387
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46387
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46387
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5398#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5398#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5398#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46980
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46980
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5398#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5398#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46977
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=46977


Audit and Scrutiny Committee 20/10/2017 10:00 13 Internal Audit Progress and Reports Look into sychning MG calendars into 

members calendars

17/11/17 00:00 Mr Paul Funnell 13/04/2018: The deadline date has been 

changed from 17/11/2017 to 31/05/2018

Reviewing this with WG members and 

consulting Modgov technical specialists 

(April 2018)

The deadline date has been changed from 

31/05/2018 to 31/07/2018

In progress

Audit and Scrutiny Committee 27/04/2018 10:00 8 Draft Annual Governance Statement 

2017/18

Arrange member officer meeting to discuss 

proposals to Minister re AGS and reporting 

regime

31/05/18 00:00 Mrs Julia 

Gruffydd

to do

ASC

P
age 15

http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5152#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5152#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34243
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=34243
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5361#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5361#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5361#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=40138#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=40138#
http://modgov.breconbeacons.org/mgActionDisplay.aspx?ID=40138#


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1.0 Budget Monitoring: Quarter 3 2018/19 

 

Name of 

Committee 
 Audit and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date 

 
1 February 2019 

Report Author  

Elaine Standen 
Job title 

 
Finance Manager 

Telephone 01874 620467 
Email elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk 
Purpose of Report To inform Members of performance against budget for the 

third quarter of 2018/19 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1: Budget Monitoring Summary to 31/12/2018 

Enclosure 2: S106 and Affordable Housing to 31/12/2018 

Enclosure 3: Project Scorecard Quarter 3 

Recommendation a) That Members note the report 

1.1 Introduction  

For the third quarter of 2018/19, 121% of the gross budget has been spent and committed.  
Overall this is substantially higher than the position at this time last year due to the number 
of large multi-year projects where there are long-term commitments (official purchase 
orders), SDF grants approved, the number of revenue projects funded from reserves at the 
year end and also the larger projects where grant is received some time in arrears (eg 
Gunpowder Works, Atlantic Isles Geoparks, and Black Mountains Land Use Partnership, Get 
into the Beacons).    
 
The planned use of the General Reserve to fund the 2018/19 budget currently stands at 
£72,000.   Capital projects are currently funded largely from grants and capital receipts; 
these are already held in reserves and applied at the financial year end and are thus lower 
risk.   
 
While the Authority’s future contractual and other commitments are not necessarily an issue 
in the short term, they do increase the potential financial risks attendant upon a sudden 
decline in core funding, a significant unanticipated cost, or of a project grant claim not being 
successful.  It is critical that these risks are monitored and action taken to mitigate them.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Maintaining sufficient reserve balances and considering the cash flow impacts of major 
projects and investments are important tools in this regard. 
 
A summary of expenditure and income to the end of the quarter by cost centre and service 
area is provided in Enclosure 1.  
 
Results for each service area are summarised below: 
 

 

Full 
Year 

Budget 
(Net) 

2018/19 

Actual to 
end Q3      

2018/19 

Committed 
2018/19 

Net Budget 
remaining 
2018/19 

Net Budget 
Spent and 

Committed 

Service Area 
    

% 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 
 

      
Chief Executive’s Office 
core 

1,201 953 205 43 96 

Land Management, 
Access & Conservation 
core 

829 660 175 -6 101 

Sustainable 
Development core 

284 215 1 68 76 

Public Engagement and 
Visitor Services core 

392 266 26 100 74 

Countryside and 
Community projects 

493 577 489 -573 216 

Planning core 838 624 20 195 77 

Planning projects 
(includes S106 income) 

51 13 0 38 
 

           26 
 

Capital projects (net 
revenue funding) 

65 299 213 -448 795 

Other (including 
transfers to and from 
earmarked reserves) 

-362 -38 0 -324 -285 

 Total 3,792 3,570 1,129 -907 10 

Revenue Grant and 
Levies 

-3,719 -3,487 0 -305 94 

Transfer from General 
Reserve 

-72 0 0 -72 0 
 

Page 18



 
 
 
 

1.2 Significant virements (budget adjustments) 
All significant virements involving changes to total expenditure and/or income on any individual 
Budget Head of more than £50,000 are reported to this Committee.  The Chief Executive, 
Delivery Director, Finance Manager and other Budget Managers have the authority to approve 
budget movements within set limits as provided for in the Authority’s Financial Regulations.  
 
Between the last meeting of the Committee and the end of the quarter, there have been no 
significant virements of more than £50,000. 
 
1.3  Principal Budget Variances in the Budget Monitoring Summary 

 
Chief Executives Department. 
There are a number of potential overspends in the department, including the Legal budget 
(approximately £10,000 subject to the progress of an ongoing legal action), Office 
accommodation (£11,000) relating to service charges and Corporate Management (£7000 
relating to external Audit fees).  These are likely to be offset by vacancy savings (Management 
Plan Officer, Receptionist) and additional interest income.  
 
Countryside Projects 
The Black Mountains Partnership project (cost centres 1400-1409) is overspent/committed due 
to large multi-year orders for bracken cutting and project evaluations over the whole life of the 
project and a delay in processing grant claims while a proposed change to the project is 
considered.  This has resulted in a substantial negative cash-flow for the Authority.  The 
Authority may need to review the project should the grant delays continue into the start of the 
next bracken-cutting season.  The total negative net balance for this project is some £528,000, 
including future commitments of some £221,000. 
 
The Geopark Atlantic Isles EU-funded project is currently over-spent as the grant claim process 
was delayed by the funders until October.  A revision to the budget is still pending from Q2.  
Additional grant funding is potentially available for the project but to date no claimed income 
has been received.  The ‘Get into the Beacons’ trainee project is also currently awaiting claimed 
grant funding and appears overspent as a result. 
 
The SDF budget includes the carry-over of some £100,000 of grant funding commitments from 
2017/18.  Of the total budgeted, some £57,000 has been spent.  All grants approved by the 
Panel have been included in the commitments figure of £233,000. 
 
Conservation, Land Management and Access core spend 
The contractual lease commitment for replacement wardens’ liveried vehicles (a 4-year lease 
starting around the end of the financial year subject to delivery dates which may be impacted 

Page 19



by ‘brexit’) has caused an apparent overspend in the Wardens budget.  Actual expenditure for 
2018-19 is not expected to be over budget at this stage. 
 
Sustainable Development and Tourism core spend 
There are no significant issues for these budgets at present. 
 
Public Engagement and Visitor Services core spend 
There is a significant overspend in relation to the Mountain Centre – this arises largely from an 
outstanding insurance claim for water damage at the Centre which has taken many months to 
resolve.  The claim has now been approved and will hopefully be credited to the Centre in 
quarter 4. 
   
Planning 
Planning Department budgets are currently on target and generally represent a lower source of 
budget management risk as much of the expenditure and income is stable and predictable.  The 
S106 receipts and payments are detailed in a separate report, which includes an additional 
amount received in January for information (enclosure 2). 
 
Capital Schemes 
The projects scorecard in Enclosure 3 provides an overview of project spend and financial 
progress. The Gunpowder Works project commitment includes the full expected cost of the 
building works.  There is a grant payment pending (due in January).  Long claim periods have 
resulted in a substantial negative cash-flow for the project as the bulk of the building 
renovation expenditure has already been incurred.  
 
Following an agreement with Welsh Water for a range of environmental and access 
improvements in the west of the Park, plus a successful bid for part of the Welsh Government 
funding referred to above, work is underway on access projects in the Llyn y Fan Fach area and 
environmental improvements on Waun Fignen Felen although spend has been limited in the 
current financial year.  Funding has been received in advance – creating an apparent 
underspend.  Any unspent funds will be held over into the new financial year.   
 
Work has commenced on the Welsh Government-funded solar energy installations at the 
Authority’s main sites and is expected to be completed by the end of the financial year. 
 
The funding of capital projects other than the Gunpowder Works is already held in reserves and 
will be transferred as required at the end of the financial year.  The apparent shortfall in this 
funding is due to timing only. 
 
Other 
This section of the budget includes filming fees received, interest income and transfers to and 
from Earmarked Reserves.   Interest income has been over budget due to the investment of 
balances in a fixed term deposit account as previously noted.  Further income for the year to 
date for the hydro generation scheme is expected to be received in Q4. 

Page 20



 
2.0  Conclusion 
 Additional focus is required on the cash-flow aspect of large projects as the Authority is 
running a number simultaneously.  It is important that the Authority maintains sufficient 
general and other reserves to provide a buffer against delays in grant receipts and unexpected 
costs.  Where cost pressures and income shortfalls have been identified in the current year, 
budget managers should ensure these are adequately reflected in their budgets for 2019/20. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

a) That Members note the report and enclosures. 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Target: 75%

Brecon Beacons Summary Report:-  up to 31/12/2018

APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2018/19 2017/18

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget Budget spent

Prior Year 

Budget

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed

Spent & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

Chief Executive
2100 Human Resources 64,350 0 64,350 46,853 0 46,853 5,709 0 5,709 48,398 82 75 11,788

2101 Legal 71,080 0 71,080 54,511 0 54,511 11,730 0 11,730 53,365 93 76 4,839

Legal costs in relation to the Gunpowder 

Project's rights of access are ongoing.  An 

overspend on  legal fees of potentially 

£10k has been identified.

2102 Finance 150,870 -10,380 140,490 106,149 -3,645 102,505 28,410 0 28,410 102,719 93 81 9,575

Annual Maintenance Charge for the 

Finance system has been paid. PO raised 

for the annual Payroll costs plus PO for 

Internal Audit work (for a period of 3 yrs. 

until 2021).

2103 Office Services 71,200 -1,080 70,120 47,532 -640 46,893 9,836 0 9,836 52,675 81 76 13,391
Includes commitment for full years 

photocopying costs. 

2104 Pool Cars 29,970 -29,970 0 34,240 -22,742 11,498 41,563 0 41,563 5,094 n/a n/a -53,061 

Payments up front for vehicle leases. 

Recharged on a quarterly basis, based on 

usage.  Commitments now in place for 

future pool vehicles (Inc. Electric van for 4 

yrs.).  These will be carried forward.

2109 Revenue Suspense Account 0 0 0 10,766 0 10,766 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a -10,766 Purchasing card spend to be allocated.

2110 Training 20,000 -1,080 18,920 13,296 -3,111 10,185 2,049 0 2,049 13,923 65 65 6,686

2200 Information Technology 236,815 -21,530 215,285 183,242 -612 182,630 66,348 0 66,348 170,981 116 79 -33,693 

Invoice for IT services to PCNPA to be 

raised asap by budget holder. (Apr-Sep)   

Commitments include year 2 + 3 of the 

Microsoft licence agreement. (Approx. 

£25k per year). 

2301
Administrative Buildings - Plas Y 

Ffynnon
111,400 -2,980 108,420 99,558 -1,170 98,388 570 0 570 87,454 91 79 9,462

Annual rates paid.  Service charges were 

under-budgeted and an overspend of £11k 

is anticipated.

3120 Park Plan Officer 45,160 0 45,160 34,336 0 34,336 0 0 0 33,926 76 n/a 10,824
Post currently vacant - potential 

underspend.

5000 Corporate Management 224,370 0 224,370 147,744 0 147,744 29,620 0 29,620 135,628 79 88 47,006
PO for 18/19 audits in place. Potential 

overspend in current year against audit 

fees of approx. £7k.

5100
Democratic Representation & 

Management
256,835 -13,820 243,015 213,303 -6,930 206,372 9,420 0 9,420 183,213 89 75 27,223

A payment of £40k refers to the 

Webcasting service contract (for the 

period Oct 18 to Sep 2023).   This will 

either be accrued or capitalised - audit 

advice pending.

Total for Chief Executive 1,282,050 -80,840 1,201,210 991,530 -38,850 952,681 205,255 0 205,255 887,376 96 77 43,274

Countryside Revenue Projects

1102 Wardens Works and Projects 59,577 -82,280 -22,703 54,320 -27,369 26,950 7,372 0 7,372 32,906 -151 -19,399 -57,025 ROWIP Income received at year end.

1107
Waterfalls Country Wardening, 

Volunteers and site management 

costs

31,580 -32,220 -640 16,405 0 16,405 2,703 0 2,703 409 -2,986 132 -19,748 
Budget intended to support Warden core 

staff costs - income will be received at year 

end as per profiled budget.

1114 Ecology Projects 67,350 0 67,350 35,778 0 35,778 0 0 0 60,450 53 -142 31,572
Invasive species underspent - new 

assistant role to be created in the next few 

months.  Monitoring work ongoing.

1130 Welcome Guide 16,000 -16,000 0 0 238 238 0 0 0 3,000 n/a n/a -238 

1131 Tourism Publications 0 0 0 0 -1,630 -1,630 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 1,630

1132 Sustainable Tourism Projects 5,700 0 5,700 3,674 -226 3,448 0 0 0 4,221 60 82 2,252

P
age 23



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2018/19 2017/18

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget Budget spent

Prior Year 

Budget

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed

Spent & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1134 Geopark Interreg Project 76,800 -76,800 0 36,022 25,457 61,479 5,704 0 5,704 63,350 n/a 85 -67,183 

Yr. end debtors likely to be outstanding 

until end of year.   Anticpated grant 

income has not yet been received as 

claims were not possible until recently.  

This is EU-funded.

1138 Destination Management 14,500 -14,500 0 5,388 -12,500 -7,112 5,000 0 5,000 0 n/a 127 2,112

1139
Tourism Visitor Managemet 

Projects (WG funded)
48,740 -2,050 46,690 33,643 0 33,643 0 0 0 35,322 72 n/a 13,047

1301 Green Growth Strategy 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000 0 0 50,000

Budget revision in January to remove this 

budget.  The project will now be managed 

by the Commercial Manager together with 

the Green Growth capital grant.

1305 SDF Strategic Projects 300,426 0 300,426 57,307 0 57,307 233,172 0 233,172 150,003 97 24 9,947
Majority of claims paid in last quarter.  

Just under £10k remains unallocated but 

actual spend is subject to claims.

1309 Volunteer Co-ordinator projects 1,650 0 1,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,233 0 35 1,650 no spend

1310 Social Inclusion Work 9,550 -9,550 0 254 -2,720 -2,466 0 0 0 -4,710 n/a -47 2,466
income generated will be used to help 

support other community projects via a 

recharge.

1312 HLF Skills in Action Project 5,650 -5,650 0 20,482 -17,681 2,801 0 0 0 0 n/a 1,209 -2,801 

1313 Get Into the Beacons Project 61,782 -61,782 0 60,680 -7,047 53,633 0 0 0 50,548 n/a 787 -53,633 
Grant income outstanding.   Claim has 

been made

1314 Small Steps Project 13,620 0 13,620 1,495 0 1,495 0 0 0 6,812 11 n/a 12,125 Project now underway - officers in post

1315 Place Plans Project 7,000 0 7,000 1,472 0 1,472 0 0 0 3,500 21 n/a 5,528 Project now underway - officers in post

1316 Active Ageing Project (Sport Wales) 8,981 -4,781 4,200 0 -12,907 -12,907 0 0 0 0 -307 n/a 17,107 New Project - Grant received in advance.

1400
Ecology Projects BMP - Bracken 

Management BW lead
106,252 -106,252 0 95,209 0 95,209 162,620 0 162,620 2,502 n/a n/a -257,829 

Commitments include order for full 

bracken cutting contract to end of project.

1401
Ecology Projects BMP - Peatland 

Restoration RB lead
85,168 -85,168 0 65,450 -330 65,120 2,757 0 2,757 10,000 n/a n/a -67,877 

1402
Ecology Projects BMP - Payment for 

Ecosystem Services PS lead
62,500 -62,500 0 27,660 0 27,660 27,660 0 27,660 5,000 n/a n/a -55,320 

1403
Ecology Projects BMP - Education 

Plan SW lead
20,400 -20,400 0 2,197 0 2,197 295 0 295 10,200 n/a n/a -2,492 

1404
Ecology Projects BMP - 

Ambassadors RT lead
7,800 -7,800 0 4,523 0 4,523 1,725 0 1,725 0 n/a n/a -6,248 

1405
Ecology Projects BMP - Investing in 

Skills  BW lead
22,500 -22,500 0 11,886 0 11,886 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a -11,886 

1406
Ecology Projects BMP - Rangers BW 

lead
70,993 -70,993 0 50,120 0 50,120 0 0 0 17,748 n/a n/a -50,120 

1407

Ecology Projects BMP - Programme 

Monitoring and Evaluation  BW 

lead

18,651 -18,651 0 21,277 0 21,277 26,044 0 26,044 0 n/a n/a -47,321 

1408
Ecology Projects BMP - Public 

Relations SW lead
4,000 -4,000 0 2,997 0 2,997 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a -2,997 

1409
Ecology Projects BMP - Project 

Administration BW lead
26,253 -26,253 0 14,481 11,246 25,728 0 0 0 8,890 n/a n/a -25,728 

4403 Public Engagement Projects 20,000 0 20,000 15,244 -15,244 0 13,500 0 13,500 20,000 68 n/a 6,500
Budget/PO for the delivery of the 

destination website.

Total for Countryside Revenue 

Projects 1,223,423 -730,130 493,293 637,964 -60,713 577,251 488,552 0 488,552 531,384 216 120 -572,510 

Countryside  - Land Management, 

Acceess, Conservation

This still remains a significant cash flow 

issue resulting from the SMS re-evaluation. 

Recent communications have confirmed a 

small amount of grant relating to 2017/18 

will be paid shortly work is continuing to 

be done to resolve all the issues.  Decision 

by WEFO pending.  The project may 

become unsustainable if the outstanding 

grant situation is not resolved before the 

2019/20 work programme begins.

P
age 24



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2018/19 2017/18

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget Budget spent

Prior Year 

Budget

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed

Spent & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1100
Wardens Management, Staff and 

Running Costs
495,700 -20,000 475,700 368,402 -8,633 359,769 173,748 0 173,748 359,318 112 75 -57,817 

Large commitment in place for the new 

livered vehicle contract which begins at 

the end of the year and runs for 4 years - 

PO needs to be assigned to appropriate 

vehicle codes.

1101 Wardens' Depot 42,120 -700 41,420 35,181 -333 34,847 0 0 0 34,966 84 84 6,573

1109 Access Officer 154,127 -74,177 79,950 79,945 -2,814 77,130 812 0 812 93,783 97 87 2,008
Grants to be received later in year once 

works completed. Inc. Offa's Dyke & the 

Pine Martin Project.

1110 Public Rights Of Way 117,820 -54,820 63,000 84,501 -24,019 60,483 0 0 0 71,578 96 107 2,517

Increased advertising costs due to 

temporary ROW closures requests. Theses 

costs have been reimbursed as income 

plus admin costs.  ROWIP Income received 

at year end.

1200 Countryside Manager 60,270 0 60,270 46,045 0 46,045 0 0 0 45,375 76 71 14,225

1220 Ecology 108,467 0 108,467 81,994 0 81,994 360 0 360 81,693 76 67 26,113

Land Management, Acceess, 

Conservation 978,504 -149,697 828,807 696,068 -35,799 660,268 174,920 0 174,920 686,713 101 #N/A -6,381 

Countryside - Communities and 

Sustainable Tourism
1105 Geopark Development Officer 45,870 0 45,870 32,623 -100 32,523 294 0 294 34,459 72 67 13,053

1120 Sustainable Tourism 91,650 0 91,650 71,376 -2,921 68,456 1,200 0 1,200 68,865 76 95 21,994

1300 Community Development 146,739 0 146,739 116,842 -2,855 113,987 0 0 0 110,533 78 80 32,752

Total for Countryside - 

Communities and Sustainable 

Tourism 284,259 0 284,259 220,841 -5,876 214,966 1,494 0 1,494 213,857 76 83 67,799

Countryside - Visitor Services

4000 Commercial Manager 53,960 0 53,960 39,529 0 39,529 0 0 0 41,705 73 75 14,431
Includes £5k budget for the Charging 

points project (no spend).

4103 Retail Stock Management 14,623 -5,900 8,723 11,627 -4,111 7,515 0 0 0 6,879 86 28 1,208

4104 Abergavenny Information Centre 33,508 -33,351 157 27,410 -28,285 -874 0 0 0 291 -557 -260 1,031

4105 Llandovery Information Centre 25,604 -25,611 -7 20,394 -19,482 911 0 0 0 -11 -13,014 -834 -918 Centre now closed. 

4107 Online Shop 2,630 -3,790 -1,160 1,326 -1,712 -385 0 0 0 -951 33 85 -775 

4108 Waterfalls Car Parks 80,080 -83,250 -3,170 49,497 -79,343 -29,846 7,150 0 7,150 -8,000 716 -499 19,526

PO for 3 year vehicle lease. Recharge for 

Wardening of Waterfalls area to be 

actioned at year end. Carpark income will 

exceed budget by year end which will fund 

unforeseen costs.

4200 National Park Visitor Centre 176,092 -182,365 -6,273 170,207 -137,795 32,412 11,685 0 11,685 -11,388 -703 -2,294 -50,370 
Insurance claim for water damage  

submitted the end of December. 

4210 Craig Y Nos Country Park 78,620 -56,530 22,090 63,868 -42,703 21,164 742 0 742 15,626 99 63 184
Profile budget not in line with actuals. 

Carpark income already reached annual 

budget.Total for Countryside - Visitor 

Services 465,117 -390,797 74,320 383,858 -313,431 70,426 19,577 0 19,577 44,151 121 89 -15,683 

Countryside - Public Engagement

4400 Public Engagement 357,990 -40,000 317,990 229,681 -34,289 195,392 6,438 0 6,438 241,208 63 73 116,160 Income potentially above estimate.

Total for Countryside - Public 

Engagement 357,990 -40,000 317,990 229,681 -34,289 195,392 6,438 0 6,438 241,208 63 73 116,160

Planning
1205 Building Conservation 57,610 0 57,610 47,722 -1,512 46,210 0 0 0 43,476 80 81 11,400

P
age 25



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2018/19 2017/18

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget Budget spent

Prior Year 

Budget

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed

Spent & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

1225 Archaeology 47,280 0 47,280 31,075 -250 30,825 475 0 475 35,612 66 66 15,980

3000 Director Of Planning 153,680 0 153,680 139,429 0 139,429 0 0 0 138,960 91 75 14,251 Includes one-off termination costs.

3100 Strategy, Policy And Heritage 128,740 0 128,740 105,328 0 105,328 180 0 180 96,089 82 74 23,232
staffing budget adjustment required - 

recode to Devt  control

3121 Minerals 2,100 0 2,100 0 0 0 2,000 0 2,000 1,575 95 119 100 Commitment for the full year in place.

3200 Development Control 364,440 -210,000 154,440 264,001 -168,854 95,147 4,565 0 4,565 118,330 65 66 54,728
Planning fee income & pre advice currently 

above estimate.   Staff pay to be corrected 

(with Strategy and Policy)

3201 Enforcement 133,390 -120 133,270 88,636 -286 88,350 0 0 0 99,993 66 63 44,920

3202 Planning Administration & Support 158,190 -8,000 150,190 115,801 -3,799 112,002 7,600 0 7,600 116,129 80 73 30,588 Q3 search fees not included yet.

3203 Tree Consultancy 11,000 0 11,000 6,315 0 6,315 4,800 0 4,800 8,497 101 107 -115 Commitment for the full year in place.

Total for Planning 1,056,430 -218,120 838,310 798,307 -174,701 623,606 19,620 0 19,620 658,661 77 72 195,084

Planning Revenue projects
3102 Local Development Plan 51,110 0 51,110 33,214 0 33,214 39 0 39 38,784 65 62 17,857

3204 Section 106 Receipts and Payments 0 0 0 7,498 -27,498 -20,000 0 0 0 0 n/a n/a 20,000
additional income was received in early 

January and will be included in the quarter 

4 summary.

Total for Planning Revenue 

projects 51,110 0 51,110 40,712 -27,498 13,214 39 0 39 38,784 26 40 37,857

Capital Projects

1112 Gunpowder Works HLF project 599,986 -595,324 4,662 451,880 -142,607 309,273 121,107 0 121,107 414,034 9,232 -277 -425,718 

The latest HLF claim will be paid in January 

at approx. £230k. The Building 

conservation works have now been 

completed, with forestry and 

interpretation work now the main focus.  

1113 Micro Hydro Scheme: Afon Clydach 17,000 0 17,000 16,986 0 16,986 250 0 250 12,744 101 88 -236 

1800
Wardens Capital Improvement 

Projects
195,590 -82,190 113,400 64,647 -102,190 -37,543 15,760 0 15,760 213,250 -19 -406 135,183

1801 Coedydd Nedd  y Mellte SAC 11,000 0 11,000 620 0 620 3,767 0 3,767 11,000 40 0 6,613

1802 Green Growth Fund 75,000 0 75,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 75,000 0 n/a 75,000

1803 Solar Panel installation project 80,000 0 80,000 5,944 0 5,944 9,352 0 9,352 55,000 19 n/a 64,704 Depot to have solar panels installed first.

1804
Access and upland improvement 

Projects
20,800 0 20,800 18,292 0 18,292 0 0 0 16,640 88 n/a 2,508

1805 EV Charging Points Project 25,000 0 25,000 14,466 0 14,466 7,699 0 7,699 20,000 89 n/a 2,835

1810
Wales Way Infrastructure and 

interpretation
39,000 -39,000 0 2,846 -44,408 -41,562 11,816 0 11,816 7,800 n/a n/a 29,746

4800
National Park Visitor Centre re-

purpose project
32,450 0 32,450 12,839 0 12,839 20,000 0 20,000 0 101 123 -389 

Budget adjustment agreed has been 

included in these figures for clarity

4801
Geopark Centre project - Craig y 

nos CP
5,000 0 5,000 290 0 290 23,550 0 23,550 5,000 477 n/a -18,840 

spend will be incurrect in new financial 

year - commitment will be carried over.

5304

Appropriations to/from Capital 

Grants Unapplied and Capital 

Receipts

0 -319,800 -319,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a -319,800 
financing of capital expenditure - will be 

completed at year end.

Total for Capital Projects 1,100,826 -1,036,314 64,512 588,810 -289,205 299,605 213,301 0 213,301 830,468 795 94 -448,394 

OTHER 0

5340 Interest received 0 -4,000 -4,000 0 -15,576 -15,576 0 0 0 0 389 281 11,576
Interest rec'd above budget - balances in 

fixed term deposit.  Subject to being able 

to hold significant receipts in advance.

P
age 26



APPROVED  ESTIMATE 2018/19 ACTUALS MONTH 1 TO 9 COMMITMENTS 2018/19 2017/18

Costc Account

Profiled 

Budget Budget spent

Prior Year 

Budget

Budget less 

actuals & 

commitments NOTES

Description Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET Expenditure Income NET  & committed

Spent & 

committed Unspent

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ % % £

5205
Filming  Fees and Green Energy 

generation receipts.
0 -25,000 -25,000 0 -19,144 -19,144 0 0 0 -18,747 77 51 -5,856 

Budgeted income from Hydro reduced due 

to low rainfall to date and technical issues.    

Further income to be invoiced shortly.

5299 Unallocated Budgets 50,400 0 50,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 50,400
provisions for inflation and pay award 

where not specifically allocated.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO/FROM 

EARMARKED RESERVES

5302 Appropriations Account Exp 0 19,707 19,707 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 19,707
5302 Appropriations Account Inc 0 -402,976 -402,976 0 -3,150 -3,150 0 0 0 -42,215 1 0 -399,826 This will all be actioned at the year end.

5302 Capital Grants Received 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0 0
TOTAL - OTHER 50,400 -412,269 -361,869 0 -37,870 -37,870 0 0 0 -60,962 10 n/a -323,999 

2100 GRAND TOTAL 6,850,109 -3,058,167 3,791,942 4,587,771 -1,018,232 3,569,539 1,129,196 0 1,129,196 4,071,640 124 89 -906,793 

FUNDING

5300 Transfers from General Reserves 0 -72,489 -72,489 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -72,489 

5300 Levy From Constituent LA'S 0 -892,977 -892,977 0 -660,357 -660,357 0 0 0 -669,732 74 -232,620 
5300 NP Grant (WG) 0 -2,826,476 -2,826,476 0 -2,826,706 -2,826,706 0 0 0 -2,200,000 100 230

5300 National Park Grant (Revenue) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/a 0

Total Funding & Transfers 0 -3,791,942 -3,791,942 0 -3,487,063 -3,487,063 0 0 0 -2,869,732 92 -304,879 

NET BUDGET 0 0 0 82,476 0 0 0 1,201,908 n/a -1,211,672 

There is a large apparent budget 

overspend due to the number of 

significant multi-year commitments which 

have been made - for the Black Mountains 

project, Wardens' replacement and other 

Vehicles, Service Level Agreements, etc.  

through the purchase-ordering system.  

they will not impact on the final outturn 

for the current financial year but be 

carried forward into 2019/20

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



S106

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD  

31/3/18

£ £ £

S106 08-02488-FUL Enviroparks ZAA Enviroparks (Hirwaun) Limited 0.00

Footpath improvement path 15 plus 

interpretation £10,000 payable to BBNPA 

Wardens/Interpretation - to be fully spent 

by 6/11/2020

0.00 -9,735.00

Planning condition monitoring fee 

£12,000 payable to BBNPA Enforcement - 

to be fully spent by 6/11/2020

243.75 BBNPA internal -10,030.52

Biodiversity condition monitoring fee 

£11,750 payable to BBNPA Ecologist  - to 

be fully spent by 6/11/2020

469.15 BBNPA internal -10,841.85

S106 11/07040/OUT 1st Market 

Housing unit - offsite play area ZAH Mr DB and Mrs GG James -3,749.00 Play area 3,749.00

Monmouthshire County 

Council 0.00

TOTAL S106 (OTHER) -3,749.00 4,461.90 -30,607.37

2017/18 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 

31/3/18

£ £ £

13/10295/FUL 7/10/15 Persimmon 

Homes  GILWERN ZAB Persimmon Homes Ltd 0.00

Affordable Housing Contribution  

£175200.60 Received Feb 2017 0.00 -175,000.60

Affordable Housing 14/11593/CON 

Plots 1-5 Castle Road, LLANGYNIDIR ZAE Mr M Richards 0.00

Application originally determined under 

UDP but receipt will be retained and 

allocated by BBNPA 0.00 -89,262.00

14/11036/FUL  The studio, Upper 

House Farm. CRICKHOWELL ZAF Gabb & Co Solicitors 0.00 Affordable Housing Contribution 0.00 -5,000.00

16/13266/FUL Conversion Triley 

Court Nursing Home ABERGAVENNY ZAG Brownfield Green -25,000.00 Affordable Housing contribution 0.00 -25,000.00

TOTAL Affordable Housing 

balance at 31/3/18 -25,000.00 0.00 -294,262.60 

Payments and receipts in relation to S106 and Affordable Housing planning conditions: financial summary

2017/18  S106 - OTHER

P
age 29



2018/19 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING

S106 Affordable Housing 

Ledger 

Code RECEIVED FROM RECEIPT PURPOSE

TOTAL 

APPLIED IN 

YEAR PAID TO

FUNDS HELD 

31/3/19

£ £ £

17/14369/DEEM, Pen Y Mynydd 

Barn, O/C ZAI E Morgan (first of 4 annual instalments) 20,000.00

18/15843/FUL Pentwyncoch Ganol ZAJ G J Philpott 83,172.00 Affordable Housing contribution

TOTAL Affordable Housing 

balance at 31/3/19 103,172.00 0.00 0.00

P
age 30



highlighted projects have 

conditions/deadlines attached, others 

more open-ended
SCORECARD 2017/18 

Actual

Project Title and description - key 

goals

Total 

Project 

Spend          

£

CODE
Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK 

AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Llyn y Fan Fach access Welsh Govt 

Specific Access Grant (68,400) and Dwr 

Cymru (30000 per year for three 

years). 

158,400 1800, LYN JH

 Warden time to be 

charged to project?  

Outstanding actions 

by DCWW

Update from PS 3/9/18: JH 

awaiting project development by 

DCWW on disabled access.  Site 

visits for this completed with LAF 

reps.  Car park improvements will 

follow after this.  Planning 

permission pending.  Order raised 

for 3530

71,860

Waun Fignen Felen - (Dwr Cymru) 

partnership agreement
50,000

1800, 

WFF
JH

JH to advise Warden 

time to charge to 

project - also 

complete  revision 

to budget as some 

spend will be next 

financial year.

Update from PS 3/9/18:  Staff costs 

now included in this project.  £3450 

on order.  Further spend expected 

but not all in current year.

4,350

Wales Way Project - Welsh Govt 

Specific Access Grant (re-designated 

Pont ar Daf funding) 

23,400 1800 DAF RT

this summary/ 

profile to be 

updated by RT for 

full two years.

To be used to fund Wales Way 

project - part of original WG capital 

access grant funding - receipt in 

advance.  Project budget developed - 

additional funding being sought re 

Llangorse facilities - PCC contributing.  

Commitmentsfor £18500 in place

0

Visitor Centre Improvements  WG 

'pressures' Grant via General Reserve
126,647

4800 

4002
WL

Finance to input 

adjustment.

commitment of £20k.  Wiring in tea 

room delayed by franchisee.
93,927

413,000

LOW 

CARBON 

INITIATIV

ES 1802     

WL

18/19 Budget to be 

revised - this is now 

moved to WL - 

needs to be 

reallocated to next 

year.  Project to be 

developed.

Project under development - 

budget subject to final proposal to 

Authority, via MT.  Budget 

adjustment pending to remove 

current year spend.  £7k allocated 

to complete micro  hydro scheme 

STILL IN DEVELOPMENT

0

80,000
 SOLAR 

1803
WL

Project has started.  Budget 

revised - to be spent by 31 March
0

BB Green Growth Fund  WG 'Green 

Growth 2017' revenue grants in 

earmarked reserve

75,000 tba WL
project development 

- T&F group.

Now managed by WL project plan 

to be developed together with 

spending profile STILL IN 

DEVELOPMENT

0

Black Mountains Partnership SMS  - 

WG-administered EU grant
989,155

1400-

1409
BW

 WEFO TO APPROVE 

REVISED DELIVERY 

PLAN AND PAY 

CLAIMS

Project delivery continuing but 

project review with WEFO and 

approval of claims underway. 

WEFO delaying approval of 

claims/revised plan.  Has been 

escalated to senior WG staff.  New 

budget ready to go when approval 

given.

143,044

2018/19 planned spend 2019/20 planned spend 2020/2021 planned spend

BB Green Growth Fund  funds held in 

WG 2017 Capital Grants unapplied 

reserve

P
age 31



highlighted projects have 

conditions/deadlines attached, others 

more open-ended
SCORECARD 2017/18 

Actual

Project Title and description - key 

goals

Total 

Project 

Spend          

£

CODE
Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK 

AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2018/19 planned spend 2019/20 planned spend 2020/2021 planned spend

Coedydd Nedd a Mellte WG 'pressures 

grant'  2017
28,000 1801 JH

Project review 

required if funding 

not available.

Update from PS 3/9/18:  New car 

park design now specified accurately.  

JH and James L to ID suitable 

contractor to prepare planning 

application and project manage the 

work (using about £3k of the 

Waterfall Country Infrastructure 

grant below).  Due to start Q3 

2018/19 and continue into 2019/20.  

The project will cost more than 

anticipated and require planning 

permission.  Design contractor Powys 

CC.  Full scheme subject to 'pressures' 

funding being available from WG in 

current year - PRESSURES FUNDING 

NOT NOW LIKELY..

0

Condition RoW Database WG ' 

pressures' grant 2017
10,000

1110, 

software
EJ

EJ to provide update 

- no spend
no spend, was due to be 

completed in Q1
2405

ROWIP Review and Revise WG 

'pressures' grant 2017
40,000 1110 EJ

23k of this will be accounted for by 

staff time and will be recharged to 

the project - is in budget.  Translation 

part completed, rest on order

7812

Addressing issues in Waterfall Country 

WG 'pressures' grant 2017- traffic 

management study

26,800
1139, 

WFS
RT

budget increased - from waterfalls 

country budget 1809
19518

Visitor Management Programme 

officer WG 2017 'pressures' grant via 

general reserve.

80,000 1139, VIS RT 11972

UNESCO Fforest Fawr  Geopark Centre 

@ Craig-y-nos CP WG '2017 pressures' 

grant via general reserve.

35,000 4801 RT
RT to check profile -

re-input by ES

spend planned for Q4 onwards - 

order raised for 23550.  Planning 

permission required.

0

Strategic approach to Invasive Non Native 

Species Pilot project WG '2017 pressures' 

grant via general reserve.

100,000 1114, INN BW
Officer in place and project 

underway - budget corrected for 

this year and next. 

1000

Gunpowder Works Project - HLF Grant 800,453 1112 RC
negotiations 

ongoing in relation 

to property issue.

 change of case officer.  Budget 

revised by RC/ES.  Access issue 

may jepoardise delivery of the 

interp element of the project.  

Grant received re July claim sent 

end October.

101148

Micro Hydro Afon Clydach - Capital 

Receipt
69,648 1113 JA/HR

WG agreed to fund additional £6k 

cost.  Budget revised accordingly. 

PROJECT COMPLETE

61457

Atlantic Geoparks 131,300 1134 RJT

Budget revision 

required asap.  

Claim 1 has been 

submitted.  Spend 

below target.

Detailed budget needs to be 

reviewed and requires input by 

project manager.  Additional 

funding may be available.

32245

EV Charging Points  WG 2018 funding 30,000 1805 WL/KB
project update 

needed

Order in place for £7700.   Police 

have completed groundwork at 

HQ.

0

Place Plan implementation WG 2018 

funding
30,000 1315 CP

Finance to check 

coding of project 

staff backfill post

Project work underway. 0

P
age 32



highlighted projects have 

conditions/deadlines attached, others 

more open-ended
SCORECARD 2017/18 

Actual

Project Title and description - key 

goals

Total 

Project 

Spend          

£

CODE
Lead 

Officer

KEY WORK 

AREA AND 

OBJECTIVE

BUDGET 

IN PLACE

SPEND 

WITHIN 

20% 

BUDGET

OUTSTANDING 

ACTIONS
COMMENTS full year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2018/19 planned spend 2019/20 planned spend 2020/2021 planned spend

Powys Teaching Health Board - Small 

Steps WG 2018 funding
40,000 1314 CP

Finance to check 

coding of project 

staff backfill post

Project work underway. 0

Llangasty and Caeau Ty Mawr site Mgt WG 

2018 funding
15,000 1102 JH/SR

project profile and 

budget revision 

outstanding

budget adjustment needed from 

JH - work is being carried out by 

SR but budget not revised.

0

Miles without Stiles, Wheelchairs WG 

2018 funding
30,000 1807 RB

budget to be moved 

to next year
spend planned for next year 0

Carn Pica Footpath Restoration WG 

2018
130,000 1804 RYL RB no spend planned until next year 0

RoW Improvements Wardens WG 

2018
29,200

1800 RYB 

to RYG
EJ

SR to raise orders 

for works
No spend on SR's project.  Other 

projects overspent.
0

RoW Improvements Access Projects 

WG 2018
20,800

1804 RYD 

and RYE
EJ some Q4 spend b/fwd 0

NP Interpretation (?) and Education 

Space at National Park Visitor Centre  

WG 2018

55,000 1808 SW

project profile and 

budget revision 

outstanding

Paper pending - there will be a 

member t&f group and a report is 

pending for NPA.  No spend 

planned until next FY

0

Waterfalls Country Infrastructure WG 

2018
48,200 1809 JH

no budget in place 

to date in 18/19 - 

profile to be 

updated by JH

Update from PS 3/9/18:  following 

meeting organised by RT 22/8/18 

with JH, JL and PS, capital spend 

priorities totalling £22,500 include:  

Craig y Dinas to Sgwd yr Eira path, 

Cwm Porth to Four Falls path, Cwm 

Porth Toilets design brief, Gwaun 

Hepste signage, Gwaun Hepste car 

park design, planning app' and 

implementation, and Clun Gwyn Isaf 

viewpoint habitat restoration.  The 

balance of £27,500 to be allocated 

towards other path improvements 

works.  Further update 13-12-18 - 1) 

Gwaun Hepste car park is taking 

priority from the 1801 and 1809 

budgets, 2) Traffic management -  

enactment of plans for Comin y Rhos 

and Ystradfellte lay-bys etc.

0

Heritage in Place Grant Scheme WG 

2018
50,000 3205 TN/CP

project profile 

outstanding

uncertainty re timing of spend but 

some target level of grant payment 

needs to be profiled 

0

WG Additional Support for BMLUP - 

Machinery and Project Management 

WG 2018

75,000
 1800 

4100
JH

project profile and 

budget outstanding

Flail purchase complete.  

Management funding dependent on 

WEFO approval of project changes

0

Nature Recovery Action Plan 

Implementation WG 2018
50,000 BW

project spend profile 

outstanding - to be 

confirmed - subject 

to progress with 

Partnership

Update from PS 3/9/18:  Project 

profile will be developed by the Local 

Nature Partnership to be formalised 

during autumn 2018.  Ecology team 

will use this as leverage to apply for a 

larger grant, with spending priorities 

agreed by the LNP.  

0

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Corporate Plan Performance Report, Quarter 3 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 Audit and Scrutiny 

Date 

 

01/02/2019 

Report Author P Funnell 

 

Job title 

 

IT and Systems Manager 

Contact Details paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report To update members on performance in quarter 3 against the 

corporate plan for 2018/19 

 

Single Integrated 

Assessment 
n/a 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 – Corporate Plan performance report q3 

2018/19 

Public Interest Test n/a 

 

Recommendation(s) that members: 

a) review and discuss the report; 

b) query any issues arising with officers; 

c) formally note the contents of the report. 

 

 

Summary 

 

The performance report for quarter 3 against the Corporate Plan for 2018/19 is at enclosure 1. 

 

One service area has not reported in time for the report deadline and this can be addressed at 

the meeting. 

 

In addition to the items contained in the report the Public Engagement Manager reports: 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



“Education Team (5 part time officers) have delivered learning experiences to 5,705 

young people in the first 9 months of this year. A record 1,557 through the medium of 

Welsh!” 

Future Arrangements 

The potential for combining this report with the risk update into a board assurance framework 

report will be discussed with internal and external audit at the meeting on the morning prior to 

this committee.  Therefore members are encouraged to reflect on the content of this report 

when it is circulated prior to the meeting and consider it in light of the proposed framework so 

that they can ensure the new process allows them to fulfil their role of offering assurance on 

performance and risk to the Authority. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 

that members: 

a) review and discuss the report; 

b) query any issues arising with officers; 

c) formally note the contents of the report. 

Page 36



Performance Report

Corporate Plan Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Heritage

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Appraise Crickhowell and 

Llangattock Conservation Area

Tracy Nettleton In Progress On Track 40

Amber

Work is progressing, issues with 

community input and Built 

Heritage staffing have resulted on 

this action being behind target for 

the quarter. We anticipate 

completion of the Appraisal by the 

close of quarter 4

Commence an appraisal of the 

Mon and Brec canal

Tracy Nettleton In Progress Behind

Amber

Staffing issues within the Heritage 

Team has delayed progress on 

this action.l

Consolidate 'at risk' structures at 

Gunpowder Works

Tracy Nettleton Complete On Time 100
Green

All works completed and signed 

off.

Review potential for further 

conservation areas 

Tracy Nettleton Complete On Time 100

Green

Investigation is complete and it 

has been determined that there is 

no capacity within the 

communities identified to 

undertake this work. VDS is 

progressing with community in 

Llanfrynach

Performance Report

Heritage Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Protect and Enhance the Park's archaeology

Overall Measure RAG Action

Measure Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Actual Target Intervention RAG Trend Comment

Proactive work on buildings at risk Tracy Nettleton 3.00 3.00 2.00

Green

Work has been undertaken in 

relation to the following 

Pontyspigg Crossways Cottages 

Mamhiland Farmhouse

Undertake positive conservation 

measures on 2 SAMs.

Tracy Nettleton 2.00 2.00 1.00
Green

Work has been undertaken on 

Fan Foel and 3 Wells Cairn SAMs

Performance Report

Corporate Plan Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Landscape and Biodiversity

Page 1 of 5Performance Report

18/01/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (6).m...

Page 37



Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Felling at Gunpowder works Ruth Coulthard In Progress On Track 30 Green No further update this qtr.

LB6 Nature Recovery Action Plan Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 70

Green

October meeting with LNP helped 

to finalise the objectives and their 

priority. NRAP final drafting 

follows this; pending. ENRAW 

project development grant 

submitted for a "Vital Signs" 

project in partnership with 

WTSWW and BIS, seeking 

funding for a full survey and 

monitoring programme; WG will 

determine yes or no by end 

February 2019.

Research programme Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 50

Green

Meeting held with the Manager for 

the Environment Platform Wales, 

steering by CU for NRW and WG, 

involving all Wales' universities. 

Aims to establish overarching 

research platform to inform Area 

Statements, SoNaRR etc. 

Workshop held with NRW and 

University of Reading on 

connectivity and ecosystems 

mapping; further work to be 

developed.

Waterfall country SLA Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 75

Green

Continued SLA delivery. Also 

progressing WG funded projects 

at Gwaun Hepste car park, Cwm 

Porth and Hendre Bolon. RT 

developing a higher level strategic 

approach to Waterfall Country 

mgmt, to enlist direct input by 

Powys CC, RCT and NPT. RT has 

submitted a project development 

bid to ENRAW to develop a 

Partnership Plan.

Performance Report

Landscape and Biodiversity Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Carbon emissions reduction

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

LB5 Black Mountains LUP Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 70 All the year's works completed on 

time. Issue with WG financiers -

Scheme Mgmt Unit has 

transferred to Rural Payments 

Agency, causing significant delay 

Page 2 of 5Performance Report

18/01/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (6).m...

Page 38



Green

on the Project's re-evaluation and, 

subsequently, delays in paying the 

last three qtrs' invoices. Firm 

letters sent by BW, JA and 

BMLUP Chair, and escalated to 

Minister. Latter has finally 

triggered a response from RPA: 

will separate out re-evaluation and 

payments from the project 

extension that BMLUP was invited 

to submit to pay for a full time 

project mgr; which still isn't in 

place.

Performance Report

Corporate Plan Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Resilient Communities

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Measure Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Actual Target Intervention RAG Trend Comment

# of active park related projects 

(annual)

Clare Parsons 50.00 40.00 Annual measure 40 to date Q3

BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a 

result of SDF, including in kind 

contributions

Clare Parsons 278.00 200.00 160.00

Green

BBED1m Total number of 

participants 

(students/teachers/assistants) 

receiving education messages 

from National Park Officers. 

Includes all centres, outreach and 

residential learning.

Sunita Welch 219.00 75.00 30.00

Green

BBED3m Number of participants 

receiving National Park Messages 

through the medium of Welsh

Sunita Welch 144.00 20.00 10.00

Green

Black Mountains Learning 

Experiences

Sunita Welch 66.00 60.00 30.00

Green

In lead up to Christmas, schools 

too busy to participate and only 2 

groups booked. (Currently 5 

bookings for Jan/Feb 2019 Q4.)

Gunpowder Works Learning 

Experiences

Sunita Welch 132.00 75.00 50.00

Green

5 groups booked in for this 

quarter, 1 had to be postponed 

due to adverse weather conditions 

- this school to be offered another 

date in Spring Term. Ed team 

successfully delivered GPW to 4 

groups in Q3.

RC15 Participants in Fairplay

programme

Sunita Welch 1.00 1.00 0.00
Green

Annual measure, dummy data 

until year end calculation

volunteer hours generated Clare Parsons 1955.00 2500.00 2250.00
Red

not complete: awaiting some 

returns

volunteer hours generated 

(annual)

Clare Parsons 7228.00 10000.00 9000.00

Red

total to end Q3 is not complete as 

Q3 returns have not been made 

from all depts.

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Deliver Place Plans WG funded 

project

Clare Parsons In Progress On Time 50
Green

work with Brecon Primarily

Deliver Small steps funded project Clare Parsons In Progress On Track 50

Green

0.5FTE officer recruited to start 

010119. Initial meetings with 

support officers for 2ndary care 

patients

ROWIP Review and Improvement Paul Sinnadurai In Progress On Track 70 Consultation draft of ROWIP 

Page 3 of 5Performance Report

18/01/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (6).m...

Page 39



Plan

Green

translated and issued on 

December 18th 2018, for three 

months. ROWIP will be finalised 

based on consultation feedback. 

Additionally, CP has submitted a 

major grant to ENRAW for "Step 

Changes," (£832k) for socially 

inclusive RoW and access 

projects.

Performance Report

Corporate Plan Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Sustainable Economic Development

Overall Measure RAG Overall Action RAG

Measure Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Actual Target Intervention RAG Trend Comment

BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a 

result of SDF, including in kind 

contributions

Clare Parsons 278.00 200.00 160.00

Green

No Ambassadors certified 

(December)

Richard Tyler

No businesses trained/attended 

conferences

Richard Tyler

No Geopark Ambassadors 

certified (December)

Richard Tyler

Total Ambassadors trained since 

2008

Richard Tyler

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

Deliver Get Into the Brecon 

Beacons Training project

Clare Parsons In Progress On Time 85
Green

2nd claim submitted. Mid term

evaluation started

Deliver HLF Skills in Action 

training project

Clare Parsons

Deliver Place Plans WG funded 

project

Clare Parsons In Progress On Time 50
Green

work with Brecon Primarily

Performance Report

Sustainable Economic Development Overall Measure RAG Overall Risk RAG Overall Action RAG

Tourism & Visitor Management

Measure Overall Action RAG

Action Owner Current Period 31 December 2018

Overall Status Progress 

Status

% Complete RAG Trend Comment

SED 9 Waterfalls Visitor Richard Tyler In Progress On Time 85 Work continues - particularly to 

Page 4 of 5Performance Report

18/01/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (6).m...

Page 40



Management - annual 

implemetnation plan
Green

prepare for next summer.

SED1 Business training incl

Ambassadors

Julian Atkins In Progress On Time 75
Green

Course full. Preparation for Q4

SED10 Visitor Management BMs Richard Tyler

SED11 Dogs & Visitors Richard Tyler

SED12 Day 2 Stay project Richard Tyler

SED13 Tourism Partnership 

Management

Richard Tyler

SED2 Destination Newsletter Richard Tyler In Progress On Time 60 Green Content in prep

SED3 Down to the Sea Julian Atkins In Progress On Track 80 Green promotion continues

SED4 Geopark Interreg Project Richard Tyler In Progress On Track 75

Green

ICT project agreed. Budget 

reallocation agreed. Work on 

marketing continues successfully.

SED8 Waterfalls Car Parking Plan 

Project

Julian Atkins In Progress On Track 95

Green

NPA discussion, Public 

consultation organised, 

Partnership established

Page 5 of 5Performance Report

18/01/19mhtml:file://D:\Users\paulf.BRECONBEACONS\Downloads\Performance Report (6).m...

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Update on High Scoring Risks quarter 3 2018/19 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 Audit and Scrutiny 

Date 

 

01/02/2019 

Report Author P Funnell 

 

Job title 

 

IT and Systems Manager 

Contact Details paul.funnell@beacons-npa.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report To update members on the risks to the Authority and the 

delivery of its Corporate Objectives 

 

Single Integrated 

Assessment 
n/a 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 - High Risks overview q3 2018/19 

Public Interest Test n/a 

Recommendation(s) That members: 

a) review and discuss the report 

b) raise any risk related issues 

c) formally note the contents of the report 

 

 

1.1 Summary 

 

 

The high scoring risks for the Authority’s risks register are summarized at enclosure 1.  Risks 

were reviewed by members of Management Team on Thu 17 Jan 2019 and updates were made 

accordingly. 

 

Further to discussion at the previous committee some format changes have been made to this 

report to include target score and a fuller description. 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



Please see comments under the Performance Update item for considerations regarding a Board 

Assurance Framework process and report that might encompass performance and risk in future 

reporting.  This should allow for a clearer account of the relationship between corporate 

objectives, performance and risk thereby allowing this committee to provide fuller assurance to 

the Authority in these matters. 

 

That members: 

a) review and discuss the report 

b) raise any risk related issues 

c) formally note the contents of the report 

Page 44



Target Trend Event Assurance

Amber

Standards 

Committee, Local 

Government 

Ombudsman for 

Wales

Green

ICO, internal and 

external audit, 

CMT

Amber

External unit for server room 

air conditioning is noisy, 

apparently caused by 

corrosion to the unit's 

housing. Landlord is aware 

but will likely need chasing.

Amber

Amber

5% cut for current and next 

year no longer applies

Amber

Amber

Target Trend Event Assurance

Amber

Issues arising from report are 

being dealt with. CEO 

appointed as chair of 

H&SWG

Amber

Target Trend Event Assurance

Amber

DS still behind schedule but 

review underway.

Amber
Oracle and SDE upgraded 08 

- 10 Nov

Target Trend Event Assurance

Green

Records 

Management 

Policy, DMT, 

CMT, ASC, 

Internal and 

External Audit

Green

Major roof leak issue at 

NPVC following exceptional 

weather, delivery of electrical 

work delayed but other work 

well progressed

Target Trend Event Assurance

Green
Internal and 

external audit.

Amber

Green

Green
Long term staff resource 

issue

Amber No recent reports

BBNPA Risk Registers - High Scoring Risks

Risk Current Period January 2019

Probability Impact RAG Comment Mitigation Contingency

Corporate Governance risks

03.3 Information governance compliance monitoring 

across all business/service areas

Likely Severe

Dark 

Red

reviewed 17/1/19 

no change

Privacy notice 

published. 

Staff/Member 

training progressed 

but not yet complete. 

New DP Policy 

drafted. Compliance 

plan in PF's PMR.

02 - Members' compliance with code of conduct Likely Severe

Dark 

Red

no proposed 

changes - interim 

Monitoring Officer 

cover in operation.

13 - Lack of continuity of membership of the National 

Park Authority

Likely Moderate Red reviewed 17/1/19 

no change

Schedule debate 

on potential 

04 BCP & DRP - risk to Authority services through 

inadequate business continuity and disaster recovery 

arrangements

Possible Severe

Red

reviewed 17/1/19 

no change

Closer monitoring at 

MT, ASC and 

FBWG developing 

22 - Inadequate general Reserves - risk to delivery of 

services and viability of the Authority through being 

unable to meet exceptional unforeseen mandatory 

Likely Severe Dark 

Red

No change 17/1/19

19 - Corporate capacity - Constraint on Authority’s 

ability to deliver services, meet obligations and realise 

opportunities due to senior officer capacity 

Likely Severe Dark 

Red

No change 17/1/19

18 - Constraint on Authority’s ability to deliver 

services due to restricted financial settlement and 

income

Likely Severe

Dark 

Red

project funding 

potential limited 

from WG. Real 

term cuts likely as a 

minimum, potential 

cash cuts. 17/1/19

Health and Safety risks

Risk Current Period January 2019

Probability Impact RAG Comment Mitigation Contingency

09 - Compliance failure/litigation: internal Possible Severe Red reviewed 17/1/19 

Management 

06 - Compliance failure/litigation: external Possible Severe

Red

No change 17/1/19

Risk Current Period January 2019

Probability Impact RAG Comment Mitigation Contingency

Information and IT risks

Some activity 

across Authority as 

a consequence of 

GDPR preparation

03.1iii Spatial data RM Possible Severe
Red

reviewed 17/1/19 - 

no change

03.1ii Hardcopy RM Possible Severe

Red

reviewed 17/1/19 

no change

Risk Current Period January 2019

Probability Impact RAG Comment Mitigation Contingency

Countryside and Land Management risks

Review underway of 

property records 

with a view to getting 

everything 

registered. File plan 

for new R drive 

agreed and being 

used.

17 - Buildings condition and maintenance Likely Moderate

Red

Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19

03.1ii Record Management Likely Moderate

Red

Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19

Risk Current Period January 2019

Probability Impact RAG Comment Mitigation Contingency

Planning risks

03.1iii Spatial data RM Possible Severe Red Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19

01 - Risk from Members overturning planning 

recommendations

Likely Severe Dark 

Red

Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19

Buddy system and 

whiteboard 

08 - Personal safety of staff Possible Severe Red

07.1 - Enforcement Service Performance Possible Severe
Red

Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19

07 - DC Service Performance Possible Severe Red Reviewed - No 

change 17/1/19Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Update 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

Date 

 

1/2/19 

Report Author Elaine Standen 

 

Job title 

 

Finance Manager  

Contact Details Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk 

Helen.cargill@tiaa.co.uk 

 

Purpose of Report To update Members on the progress of the Audit Plan for 

2018/19 and provide the internal audit reports for block 1 

and 2 for Members’ consideration. 

List of  Enclosures a) Block 1 Audit Report, 

b) Block 2 Audit Report 

c) Summary Internal Controls Progress Report 

Public Interest Test Not applicable 

 

Recommendation(s) 
 

a) That Members note progress against the Internal 

Audit Plan for 2018/19 and the management 

actions agreed. 

b) That all outstanding management actions arising 

from the audits are included in Modern.Gov to 

enable progress to be monitored. 

1.1 Introduction or Background 

 

The Authority procured TIAA as its internal auditor for a three-year period from April 2018 

Helen Cargill is the audit manager for BBNPA main point of contact for the Committee and 

Management. 

 

1.2    Progress to date 

The first block of audit work was completed in June by a team of three auditors from TIAA and 

the recommendations were reviewed by Management Team in September.  Management Team 

Page 47

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk
mailto:Helen.cargill@tiaa.co.uk


produced a set of responses and a series of actions but the amended draft was not returned to 

TIAA in time for the final version to be included with the October Audit and Scrutiny Agenda.  

The final report was then circulated to Members for information in the interim and is now 

included with this agenda for consideration. 

The topics covered in Block 1 are as per below.  Further details of the findings, management 

actions arising and target dates are provided in pages 4-6 of the enclosed report. 

 

Block 1 11-15th June 2018 

AUDIT TYPE STATUS OUTSTANDING MANAGEMENT 

ACTIONS TO BE RECORDED ON 

MOD.GOV  

Governance – 

Performance 

Management 

 

Assurance Final Report 

issued 

The full-year performance report to be 

presented to the first A&S Cttee after 31 

March annually. 

The Annual Report on performance is 

presented to A&S Cttee each Autumn. 

All reporting officers must provide a 

comment against each PI on at least a 

quarterly basis – these will be reviewed by 

Management Team. 

A summary report including officer 

commentary and any Management Team 

comment is compiled by the IT Manager for 

the quarterly report to the A&S Committee. 

Risk Management 

Overview 

Appraisal Final Report 

issued 

A report on the highest risks is presented 

quarterly to the A&S Committee by the IT 

manager as required by the Risk management 

Strategy.   

General Data 

Protection 

Regulations 

readiness 

Compliance Final Report 

issued 

A detailed Data Protection Act 2018 

compliance plan be drafted to capture all the 

outstanding actions required to ensure full 

compliance. 

Page 48



 

The audit finding overall was ‘reasonable assurance’ on the Block 1 areas reviewed. 

 

The second block of audit work was completed in October by a team of two auditors from 

TIAA and was reviewed by Management Team in November.   The report was reviewed by 

Management Team and a series of actions agreed. The final report is now included for 

consideration by Members. 

The topics covered in Block 2 are as per below, together with the outstanding management 

actions.  Further details of the findings, actions arising and target dates are provided in pages 4-

6 of the enclosed report. 

 

 

Block 2 8-12th October 2018 

AUDIT TYPE STATUS OUTSTANDING MANAGEMENT 

ACTIONS TO BE RECORDED ON 

MOD.GOV 

Project Management  

 

Directed Final Report 

issued 

Grants Policy to be drafted by Management 

Team, when Delivery Director is in post.  To 

include process of initiation and review on 

completion. 

Project Initiation template document is 

drafted and used by project officers to seek 

Management Team authorisation prior to 

making a bid. 

A project closure document including a 

concise evaluation of the costs and benefits 

of the project be drafted and used for 

reporting on all completed projects to 

Management team. 

Project Financial Management Summary to be 

fully updated by project officers and 

Page 49



outstanding actions addressed.   

Project Financial Management Summary to 

include information on the corporate 

objective(s) being delivered by each project. 

Strategic Control Compliance Final Report 

issued 

Member role description to be updated 

jointly by all three Welsh Park Authorities. 

Code of Corporate Governance be reviewed 

as planned. 

Register of gifts and hospitality to be 

presented annually to the A&S Committee 

for information. 

CEO to establish terms of reference for the 

Management Team. 

Key Financial 

Controls 

Compliance Final Report 

issued 

Staff to be advised/reminded that they should 

notify their line manager and the HR Officer 

of any conflict of interest arising from their 

role, such as also acting as a supplier to the 

Authority and that this will be recorded on 

their personal file. 

Payroll procedures documentation should be 

reviewed and updated if necessary. 

 

The audit finding overall was ‘reasonable assurance’ on the Block 2 areas reviewed. 

A summary of the progress to date in relation to internal audit’s reporting to the authority on 

internal controls assurance is also enclosed (Enclosure c).  The final piece of the work for the 

year will be the formal annual report on internal controls taking into account all the work 

carried out by TIAA during the financial year will be reported to the Committee at the first 

meeting after the close of the year. 

Recommendation 

a) That Members note progress against the Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19, the 

contents of the reports and the management actions agreed. 

Page 50



b) That all outstanding management actions arising from the audits are included 

in Modern.Gov. 

 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 2018/19  

 

 

 

` 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  

 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

October 2018 

 FINAL 

P
age 53



 
 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Block Review – Quarter 1  
Page 1 

 

 

 

 

Block 1 Review 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This is the first review of the internal control arrangements at Brecon Beacons National Park. The review was carried out in June and July 2018 as part of the planned 
internal audit work for 2018/19. 

SUMMARY 

2. The areas reviewed and the type of review are shown in table below. For system reviews assessments of the effectiveness of the internal controls are also shown in 
the table below. These assessments are based on the evaluation and testing of the key probity risks. 

Summary of the Evaluations of the Effectiveness of the Internal Controls 

System 
Type of 
Review 

Assessment 

Governance – Performance 
Management 

Compliance Reasonable 

Risk Management Appraisal Substantial 

General Data Protection Act Appraisal Reasonable 

 

KEY FINDINGS 

3. The significant matters identified from the audit work undertaken which need to be addressed in order to strengthen further the control environment and the 
recommendations arising are set out in the management action plan section of this report. Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by the Authority 
for their full impact before they are implemented. 

4. The principal purpose of the review was to assess the effectiveness of the internal control arrangements in mitigating against risk. Operational Effectiveness action 
points were identified and opportunities for enhancements to the current arrangements are set out in the Operational Effective management action plan. 

  

P
age 54



 
 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Block Review – Quarter 1  
Page 2 

 

 

RELEASE OF REPORT 
5. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 7th August 2018 

Date management responses rec’d: 17th October 2018 

Date final report issued: 22nd October 2018 

 

 

P
age 55



 
 

 

PRIORITY GRADINGS 

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 3 
 

Management Action Plan – Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

Governance – Performance Management 

1 Directed The final report on performance for the 
year is presented to Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee in its April meeting following 
the year end.   

Review of both the 2016/17 and 
2017/18 reports indicated that these 
were not complete. 

However, no further reports on 
performance for the year are presented 
to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee in 
relation to the missing information, 
resulting in some measures not being 
subject to review. 

The year-end performance report 
be updated in full prior to 
presentation to the Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee  

2 Agreed.  The updated full year 
information will be presented at the 
first meeting of the Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee in the following 
financial year. 

 

The Annual Report on corporate 
performance is submitted to 
Members in the Autumn following 
the end of the Financial year. 

 

By 31/05/19 

 

 

 

 

 

By 31/10/18 

All reporting 
Managers, IT 
Manager will 
compile the 
report for Cttee. 

 

 

All Reporting 
Managers,  The 
Annual Report is 
compiles by the 
Management 
Plan Officer 

 

P
age 56



 
 

 

PRIORITY GRADINGS 

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 4 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Compliance Review of the year end performance 
report for 2017/18 and the first quarter’s 
report for 2018/19 highlighted that 
performance data had not been 
provided for all indicators. 

All performance indicator owners be 
required to provide a commentary or 
performance statistics for each 
quarterly performance report. 

2 All reporting staff are required to 
enter a comment against each PI on 
at least a quarterly basis.  Each 
quarter’s report is reviewed by 
Management team and any 
strategic issues and actions 
identified.  Management Team will 
review the detailed performance 
data and the information supplied by 
reporting officers on a regular basis 
to identify and address gaps and 
issues. 

A summary report with related 
officer commentary and 
management team comments is 
compiled by the IT Manager and 
reported to the next available Audit 
and Scrutiny Cttee. 

For Q2 report- for 
Audit and 
Scrutiny Cttee.  
26/10/18.  Typing 
deadline 
12/10/18 

 

 

 

 

 

By 31/10/18 

All reporting 
officers and 
Management 
Team 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IT Manager 

P
age 57



 
 

 

PRIORITY GRADINGS 

1 URGENT 
Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT 
Control issue on which action should 
be taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE 
Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 5 
 

   

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

Risk Management 

3 Operational The Risk Strategy states that a report 
on the highest risks is presented to the 
Audit and Scrutiny Committee quarterly. 

Risk reports, one of which was the 
annual report of the full register, were 
only presented in October 2017 and 
April 2018  

A report on the highest risks be 
presented to the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee quarterly as required by 
the Risk Strategy. 

3 Agreed 

 

By 31/10/18 IT Manager 

GDPR 

4 Compliance The Authority had not documented a 
Data Protection Act 2018 Compliance 
Plan at the time of this review 
documenting all of the actions that need 
to be completed to ensure full 
compliance with the Act. 

A detailed Data Protection Act 2018 
Compliance Plan be documented as 
intended that details all of the 
necessary actions that need to be 
completed to ensure full compliance 
with the Act. 

2 Agreed 31 Dec 2018 IT Manager 

 

P
age 58



 
 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Block Review – Quarter 1 
Page 6 

 
 

Operational Effectiveness Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

Governance –  Performance Management 

1 Directed Consideration be given to the inclusion of comparative trend data for the same 
period in the previous year. 

 This will be addressed in the Annual Report, which includes comparators for 
2016/17. 

 

2 Directed The in-year colour coding assigned to indicate the status and progress of 
delivery of actions and measures be clearly defined to ensure a consistent 
interpretation by owners and readers of the performance report. 

 Refresher training will be considered for data managers to ensure consistency 
of approach. 

3 Compliance An assurance map recording each actions relating to the four key work areas 
be identified setting out where the delivery of the action is reported or monitored 
to ensure there are no gaps and to reduce potential duplication. 

This is an action for the Key Work Area Leads as part of the linkage between 
the National Park Management plan and performance reporting. 

4 Compliance Consideration be given to the delegation of responsibility for the monitoring of 
delivery to the most appropriate Management Team, Committee, Group or 
Board. 

Respective roles of Management Team and Audit and Scrutiny Cttee to be 
discussed at a workshop in October. 

5 Compliance Critical performance indicators be identified and the source of assurance and 
the progress of delivery of the indicator be reported to the Audit and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Following a workshop Managers should undertake a full review of all existing 
Performance indicators in the light of Key Work Areas, strategic priorities and 
statutory reporting to ensure the right information is being collected and used 
effectively. 

6 Compliance Consideration be given to reporting performance indicators only once within the 
performance report. 

This also indicates a re-design and simplification of the data collection method 

Agreed; see above re purposes and duty replacing KWAs. 

P
age 59



 
 

ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Block Review – Quarter 1 
Page 7 

 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 

Comments 

7 Compliance Consideration be given to the clarity of wording of the performance indicators to 
enable better understanding from those tasked with monitoring performance. 

There is some support for a review of the method/system used to collect, store 
and report on performance.  However, benefits would need to be offset against 
the costs of setting up and populating a replacement system which is suitable 
for this type of organisation, giving the required reporting/dashboard outputs. 

Risk Management 

8 Operational Consideration be given to the extension of the current risk management 
arrangements to provide a Board Assurance Framework to facilitate the Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee in its oversight of risk management arrangements. 

Could this be further clarified - or example provided?  Initial response is that 
this may be overly complex given the small size of the organisation.  Further 
details/an example is sought. 

Auditors Comment 

A template has been provided. 

9 Operational The next planned review date of the Risk Management Strategy be annotated 
on the face of the document to ensure timely review and update. 

Agreed 

GDPR 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified during this review. 

 

 

P
age 60



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 8 

 

 

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW 

6. The scopes of the reviews were set out in the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19, which was agreed with Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. 

7. The limitations and the responsibilities of management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. 

8. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use 
and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and 
specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

ASSESSMENT OF THE KEY RISK CONTROL OBJECTIVE 

9. This review identified and tested the controls that are being operated by the Authority and an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating 
the key control risks is provided. The assessments are: 

Substantial Assurance There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks are 
managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited Assurance 
The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not operating effectively and significant improvements are required to ensure that 
risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls requiring immediate action. 

  

P
age 61



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 9 

 

 

Detailed Findings 
 

 

System: Governance – Performance Management 

Evaluation Reasonable Assurance 

10. The following matters were identified on an exceptions basis. 

Background 

10.1 The Audit and Scrutiny Committee expressed concern about the completeness of the performance data presented to it at the April 2018 meeting. The audit 
of Performance Management was brought forward in place of the planned strategic planning audit in response to this concern. 

10.2 Performance Management has previously been audited by internal audit.  The most recent audit took place in 2016/17 providing adequate assurance.  Two 
significant recommendations were raised as follows: 

 Undertake a review of key performance indicators (KPIs) to ensure relevant and linked to strategic plan.   

 Introduction of a high level performance dashboard report for Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  

10.3 Both recommendations have been implemented. 

Performance Management 

10.4 The Brecon Beacons National Park Corporate Plan 2018/19 sets out the Authority's vision, including the numerous strategic priorities for the Authority and 
how these will be delivered and measured.   The Plan links to other plans and policies that'll help it achieve these priorities over the term of the Plan. A 
number of detailed activities are identified within the Corporate Plan covering six objective themes as follows: 

 managing park landscapes to maximise conservation and public benefits; 

 conserving and enhancing biodiversity; 

 provide opportunities for outdoor access and recreation; 

 raising awareness and understanding of the park; 

 building and maintaining sustainable communities, towns and villages; and 

 sustainable economic development. 

10.5 Further performance reporting is required against the seven objectives of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015. 

P
age 62



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 10 

 

10.6 The Authority has worked with the University of South Wales to identify four key work areas and four critical success factors and is working to align its 
management structure to these key work areas. 

Key Work Areas Critical Success Factors 

heritage relevance; 

landscapes and biodiversity; demonstrating excellence 

resilient communities resilience 

sustainable economic development shaping / leading our future 

10.7 It was noted that the Authority is currently seeking to deliver a new operational model which will deliver its purposes effectively while operating within a 
reduced cost environment.  This is planned to be delivered for the 2019/20 budget and has not been considered as part of this review. 

10.8 Stakeholders have been consulted in the development of the management plan, the corporate plan and the priorities and indicators. 

10.9 The IT and Systems Manager has overall responsibility for Performance systems and reporting.  The Management Team has overall responsibility for 
Performance Monitoring. 

10.10 The performance priorities and KPIs are recorded on the Authority's Performance Management System, Ffynnon (now known as AspireView) and are 
maintained by the relevant owner / Directorate.  The system also includes local performance indicators which illustrate the work of the Directorate in context 
of workloads, cases, statistics and targets.  

10.11 Complaints are presented to each meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  A review of the complaints received during 2017/18 confirmed that none 
related to performance monitoring.  

10.12 The National Park Authority has delegated responsibility for the scrutiny of performance monitoring reports to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  This meets 
four times a year and performance monitoring is a standing agenda item. This was confirmed to the agenda and accompanying papers throughout the year. 

10.13 The Management Team has oversight of performance.  The system provides the ability to drill down into the underlying detail to challenge performance as 
required. 

10.14 The Audit and Scrutiny Committee currently receives a performance dashboard which is RAG rated and provides trend information based against the 
previous quarter and a detailed report.  The system permits historical trends to be identified and from discussions with staff it was evident that the historical 
data and trends are referenced when reviewing performance, but these do not form part of the report to the Committee.  The inclusion of comparator for the 
same period in the previous year may assist in providing assurance that progress is in line with expectations and comparable to the previous year. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 1 
Consideration be given to the inclusion of comparative trend data for the same period in the previous year. 

10.15 The Detailed Performance Report includes two pie charts for each section of the report to illustrate the overall RAG status of the "measures" and "actions" 
where Red indicates that there is an issue requiring Senior Management review and Green represents no issues.  A supporting table stating each action, 
the owner, overall status, progress status, percentage complete, the RAG rating, trend and any comments is provided for each section. 

P
age 63



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 11 

 

10.16 The RAG rating is relatively simplistic and may be misleading to report readers during the year.  Green coded items are not complete but on track for 
completion/delivery.  Similarly, from discussion with indicator owners, a red coded item does not necessarily mean that there is an issue, but the target has 
not been achieved to date.  The different interpretations indicate that there may be a need to clarify how the RAG rating is assigned to each of the actions 
or measures in order to provide an accurate representation of progress and areas of concern.  These could include the use of amber for those areas that 
are in line with expectations in the year to date but which have not yet been completed. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 2 

The in-year colour coding assigned to indicate the status and progress of delivery of actions and measures be clearly 
defined to ensure a consistent interpretation by owners and readers of the performance report. 

10.17 The IT and Systems Manager reported to the July Audit and Scrutiny Committee that there is currently a bug in the system which impacts on the accuracy 
of the ‘Progress Status’ and ‘Overall Status’ fields for which a solution is currently being pursued, so a recommendation has not been raised.  In the interim, 
the detailed table provides the relevant information to assess progress. 

10.18 The Performance Dashboard provides a summary table for each of the four key work areas which lists the title of each of the priorities and their current RAG 
status (colour coded) with a trend indicator.  The key work area is also RAG rated and includes a trend indicator. 

10.19 The performance reports are presented to the Committee for noting.  It was noted that there had been challenge in recent meetings regarding the incomplete 
data provided in the performance monitoring reports and this had been explained  in several ways: 

 annualised measures for which data would not be available; 

 staff workloads; and 

 timing of the meetings. 

10.20 The Members at the most recent meeting (July 2018) were minuted as noting a significant improvement in the completeness of the data.  It has also been 
resolved that in future, where there are gaps in the report, the owner will be required to attend the Audit and Scrutiny Committee to provide an update.  It is 
expected that this will re-emphasise the importance attached to performance reporting and monitoring. 

10.21 A final performance report is presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee meeting each April.  The following meetings then receive performance reports 
relating to the current financial year.  It was observed that the final performance report to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee for 2016/17 was presented in 
April 2017 and that there were a number of gaps in performance reported, for example, six of the measures relating to the 2016/17 Vitality and Viability of 
Communities and their Businesses area had not been updated at the year end and had been coded as “NONE” rather than the RAG rating. This was also 
identified in the April 2018 meeting in respect of the 2017/18 year-end report.  In both cases, no further reference was made to the unreported performance 
in the next meeting.  Consequently, the Audit and Scrutiny Committee did not receive a final report on performance for the year.  

Recommendation: 1 The year-end performance report be updated in full prior to presentation to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

Priority 2 

  

P
age 64



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 12 

 

10.22 A full report on the performance against the corporate plan is provided in the Annual Report, which is submitted to the Wales Audit Office and published on 
the Authority’s website.  The 2017/18 annual report was not available at the time of this review, however the 2016/17 annual report, dated November 2017, 
was obtained and it was confirmed that performance had been reported against each of the four improvement priorities (or key work areas) using a RAG 
colour coding as follows: 

 Green – achieved or exceeded target; 

 Amber – fell just short of the target; and 

 Red – fell considerably short of the target. 

10.23 All but two of the actions or measures had been achieved.  In both cases an explanation was provided for the failure to achieve the target.   

10.24 It was confirmed that the Annual Report 2016/17 was reviewed and approved at the November 2017 National Park Authority meeting following a discussion 
and clarification of the Red rated areas. 

10.25 A sample of performance indicators was selected by the Management Team for further review as follows: 

 Keeping up with the financial/project delivery profile; 

 Meeting Actions set out in the 2015 – 2020 National Park Management Plan; 

 No businesses trained/attended conferences (2017); 

 BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a result of SDF, including in kind contributions;  

 BBED1m Education total numbers annualised; and 

 BBED3m Number of participants receiving National Park Messages through the medium of Welsh. 

10.26 Meetings were held with the nominated owner of each performance indicator to gain an overview of how the performance indicator was managed during the 
year including the completeness and accuracy of the information reported on Ffynnon and provided to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

Keeping up with the financial/project delivery profile and Meeting Actions set out in the 2015 – 2020 National Park Management Plan 

10.27 These performance indicators relate to Corporate Improvement Priority 2 (key work Area 2 – Landscape and Biodiversity) which is included in the 2017/18 
Corporate Plan as follows:  

 Through effective partnership, facilitation, practical action and the planning function the National Park’s landscapes and biodiversity will benefit from 
broad-scale targeted and promoted conservation projects; and 

10.28 The Natural Resources Management Team was responsible for delivery of the improvement priority and the Natural Resources Manager identified the two 
indicators as an effective means of monitoring compliance in terms of financial management and delivery.  

  

P
age 65



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 13 

 

10.29 Progress was recorded on Ffynnon on a quarterly basis and the following indicates the year end position: 

Improvement Priority Objectives Corporate Performance Report Action Outcome 

Reducing land based carbon emissions and restoring 
upland habitats 

No direct link to a performance indicator on the performance monitoring report 

Waterfall Country: - Service Level Agreement with NRW LB8 – Waterfall County SLA Green  - Complete 

Black Mountains: - Black Mountains Land Use 
Partnership Sustainable Management Scheme 

LB5 – Black Mountains LUP Green – In progress  

Research Programme and Strategic Research 
Partnerships 

LB7 – Research Conference Green – in progress 

Local Biodiversity Action Plan (Local Nature Recovery 
Plan) 

LB6 – Nature Recovery Action Plan Amber – work in progress 

10.30 Review of the performance reports indicated that a detailed narrative update had been presented to update progress in delivering the required action, with 
the exception of reducing land based carbon emissions and restoring upland habitats, which did not appear as a unique performance indicator on the report 
but was addressed through a variety of measures. 

10.31 A detailed table provided a breakdown of the indicators that had been applied by the Natural Resources Management Team (NRMT) in identifying financial 
progress internally including: 

 Budget reports; 

 Annual reports 

 Project appraisal reports submitted to Welsh Government. 

10.32 The second indicator applied related to the Brecon Beacons National Park Management Plan 2015-2020.  This plan, which is a requirement of section 66(l) 
of the Environment Act 1995, builds on the previous management plan which was developed following widespread public consultation and informs future 
policies and priorities and the Corporate Plan.  It includes the six themes that are also incorporated in the corporate plan and a series of actions to ensure 
the goals are met.  The Management Plan must be reviewed and updated at least every five years. 

  

P
age 66



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 14 

 

10.33 The detailed table adopted by the NRMT sets out which actions within the Management Plan correspond to each of the improvement priority objectives 
above. For example, the Waterfall Country Service Level Agreement is mapped to the following: 

WATERFALL COUNTY SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT – MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 2017/18 

Theme Action How progress will be reported - indicator 

Theme 1: Managing park landscapes to 
maximise conservation and public benefits 

 Action 16: prioritise and plan management of four 
focal areas, being Mynydd du, Waterfall Country, 
Llangasty Caeau ty-Mawr and Black Mountains; and 

 Action 21: enhance the visitor experience of the 
Parks wildlife, farming, landscape and environment. 

 Landscape character assessment; 

 Scheduled ancient monuments and listed 
buildings at risk; and 

 Condition of regionally important geodiversity 
sites. 

Theme 3: Provide opportunities for outdoor 
access and recreation for the benefit of health 
and wellbeing 

 Action 43: communicate information om safety and 
ecosystems; 

 Action 44: maintain access to water; and 

 Action 46:  increase the health and wellbeing benefit 
by excluded groups. 

 % of rights of way that are easy to use; 

 Erosion on upland paths; and 

 Visitor satisfaction. 

Theme 4: Raising awareness and understanding 
of the Park 

 Action 52: increase opportunities for volunteering; 

 Action 53:increase opportunities for excluded 
groups to derive health and wellbeing benefits; 

 Action 60: encourage and promote sustainable 
uses; 

 Action 63: improve visitor confidence. 

 Number of outdoor education centres; 

 Number of settlements benefitting from 
interpretation and / or information panels; and 

 Ratio of staying visitors and day visitors. 

10.34 Monitoring is largely undertaken at project level on the basis that there is a budget for the project and the project is delivered.  There is no resource to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the outcome in an ecological context, purely that the work planned has been undertaken. 

10.35 The layers to monitoring and reporting the achievement of the corporate plan objectives are complex and require collaboration with partners in many cases 
and this is why the additional table has been prepared by the NRMT to demonstrate where the data may be obtained to support delivery.  For example, 
review of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee agenda for April 2018 confirmed that a paper was presented that provided a position statement and update on 
the priority actions relating to the National Parks Wales Together for Health and Well-being Update.  Closer review of the paper indicated that progress was 
reported against the following priority actions: 

 Raise awareness of the health and well-being benefits opportunities of National Parks; 

 Continue to develop evidence based-policy and practice in relation to health and wellbeing and the natural environment and landscape features; and 

 Maximise opportunities for all people in Wales to access the health and wellbeing benefits of the natural environment and landscape features of 
National Parks.   

P
age 67



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 15 

 

10.36 Considerable parts of the report demonstrated the performance in respect of the themes and actions underpinning the Waterfall County Service Level 
Agreement indicator summarised in the table above.   Consequently, the narrative updates provided on Ffynnon and on the overarching performance report 
presented to the Committee provide a high level overview of the much more detailed work that is ongoing elsewhere.   

10.37 Because of the complexity of the area and the various means of reporting and monitoring progress, it would be a valuable exercise to effectively produce an 
assurance map of who is responsible for each component action and to identify how the achievement of the action is monitored or reported.   

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 3 

An assurance map recording each actions relating to the four key work areas be identified setting out where the delivery 
of the action is reported or monitored to ensure there are no gaps and to reduce potential duplication. 

No. businesses trained/attended conferences (2017) 

10.38 The indicator is reported under the Sustainable Economic Development work area in the performance monitoring report.  The Corporate Plan for 2018/19 
states that the Authority will continue to engage businesses and communities in National Park Objectives through the Ambassadors programme and business 
training events by retaining at least 150 Ambassadors, holding more than 15 business focused training days and directly engaging with over 500 business 
and community contacts over the year.  This is consistent with the target in the 2017/18 Corporate Plan. 

10.39 Responsibility for the indicator is assigned to the Sustainable Tourism Manager for update.   

10.40 It was noted that performance had not been reported in the year-end report for 2017/18 and that no performance data had been included in the first quarter’s 
report for 2018/19.  

Recommendation: 2 All performance indicator owners be required to provide a commentary or performance statistics for each quarterly 
performance report. 

Priority 2 

10.41 The Sustainable Tourism Manager provided a published report, “The Destination Partnership Report 2017” which provided all the required data for the 
indicator and demonstrated that the targets had been achieved.  This is a joint publication between the National Park Authority and Brecon Beacons Tourism 
who work together as the Brecon Beacons Sustainable Destination Partnership.  The partnership has a Sustainable Tourism Strategy 2017-2022 and 
Destination Action Plan 2017-2020 which is aligned to the Corporate Plan. 

10.42 This strategy sets out a “set piece” calendar of meetings in a single year designed to engage with businesses.  The Strategy also addresses the Ambassador 
scheme.  The Partnership has its own Board and a Delivery and Reporting Group which will monitor the delivery of the indicator.  Consequently, performance 
is being monitored through a different forum throughout the year.  This information was reviewed and confirmed to the underlying data as accurate.   

10.43 In order to reduce duplication of effort, or in this case a perceived lack of reporting, it may be of benefit review the current reporting arrangements and to 
delegate responsibility for the in-year monitoring of this indicator to the Delivery and Reporting Board of the Brecon Beacons Sustainable Destination 
Partnership. This review could be undertaken in conjunction with the assurance mapping review suggested in Operational Effectiveness Matter 3 above. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 4 

Consideration be given to the delegation of responsibility for the monitoring of delivery to the most appropriate 
Management Team, Committee, Group or Board. 

P
age 68



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 16 

 

10.44 In addition, it might be of value to identify the critical performance indicators which will continue to be reported to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee via the 
dashboard but with the inclusion of the source of assurance that the reported indicator has been subject to scrutiny and challenge.  The Committee would 
then be able to call in representatives from the “assurance provider” to evidence the performance or to explain the actions being taken to address any 
slippage where a red or amber RAG rating had been reported against a critical indicator. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 5 

Critical performance indicators be identified and the source of assurance and the progress of delivery of the indicator 
be reported to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

BBCOM1iii The public ratio as a result of SDF, including in kind contributions 

10.45 The indicator is reported under the Resilient Communities work area within the Quarter 1 Performance Report, where it is currently showing a green RAG 
status, indicating no issues.  The indicator is owned by the Sustainable Communities Manager. 

10.46 Further review of the first quarter’s performance report indicated that the indicator was also included under the Sustainable Economic Development heading, 
so had been reported twice.  The performance information was consistent in both cases, although the actions assigned to the owner were different. In this 
instance, it was only indicator that was reported, with the remaining four indicators on the detailed table providing no information on actual or target 
performance or a RAG rating. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 6 
Consideration be given to reporting performance indicators only once within the performance report. 

10.47 The meaning of the indicator is not immediately clear and requires explanation or reference to the Corporate Plan or the detail available on drilling down 
within Ffynnon for those not familiar with this area,.  It relates to the Sustainable Development Fund (SDF), which is used to support community resilience 
and the level of matched funding obtained to support the projects.  The target is set as achieving 1(£SDF):2(£match-funding).  At the time of audit the 
indicator was reported as 1:2.57, that is £2.57 of matched funding had been obtained for every £1 of the SDF.  This indicator also links to the Wellbeing of 
Future Generation targets. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 7 

Consideration be given to the clarity of wording of the performance indicators to enable better understanding from 
those tasked with monitoring performance. 

10.48 The information is calculated manually and input into Ffynnon by the Sustainable Communities Officer.  The most recent data for March 2018 was tested 
and agreed back to supporting data. 

10.49 The target was delivered in 2017/18. 

BBED1m Education total numbers annualised; and BBED3m Number of participants receiving National Park Messages through the medium of Welsh. 

10.50 The above performance indicators are both reported under the Resilient Communities work area in the Quarter 1 Performance Report and are owned by the 
Education Manager.  Both indicators are long running measures arising from a project undertaken in 2008 on behalf of all National Parks to measure the 
benefit of education studies, but it was noted that they also align well to the Wellbeing of Future Generations requirements.  

P
age 69



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 17 

 

10.51 Both indicators are currently reported as a green RAG status with no issues highlighted. 

10.52 The data is captured monthly on the basis of organised attendance at the Park’s centres, outreach and residential learning.  Data reported was verified to 
the underlying data and confirmed as accurate. 

10.53 The target for education numbers annualised of 5,000 was delivered in 2017/18. 
 

System: Governance – Risk Management 

Evaluation Substantial Assurance 

11. The following matters were identified on an exceptions basis. 

11.1 Risk Management was last subject to internal audit review in March 2016 (2015/16) where an adequate assurance opinion was given.  Recommendations 
were raised in respect of the following areas, all of which have been reported as complete: 

 review of risk management arrangements; 

 format and presentation of the risk register; and 

 defining the scoring criteria in further detail. 

11.2 The Authority uses Aspireview (previously known as Ffynnon), a web based system for the maintenance of the risk register.  The  register is subdivided into 
several registers including a register for each of the three Directorates: 

 Corporate Services 

 Planning; and  

 Countryside and Land Management. 

11.3 Separate project registers are also maintained, generally in response to specific funding requirements. 

11.4 The Heads of Service Area are responsible for the updating and maintenance of the local register.  The IT and Systems Manager (Data Protection Officer) 
has oversight of the risk management processes and is the day to day contact for operational issues relating to them.   

11.5 The Management Team reviews the registers on a monthly basis, and carries out a full review quarterly, providing a means of moderating the risks across 
the cross cutting areas and identifying the highest risks for reporting to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

11.6 The terms of reference of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee, which meets quarterly, include the following responsibility in respect of risk management: 
"Setting the strategic approach to risk and approving changes to the Risk Register". 

11.7 The National Park Authority has delegated responsibility for oversight of risk management to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  The review of the risk 
register is a standing item on the Audit and Scrutiny Committee's agenda.  The register is reviewed in full annually, with the highest risks from both local, 
corporate and project registers reviewed at all other meetings. 

P
age 70



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 18 

 

11.8 Although a formal board assurance framework has not been developed, the risk register includes the sources of assurance available for each risk.  These 
tend to be level two (that is internal committee and scrutiny arrangements) and level three (independent) sources of assurance.  

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 8 

Consideration be given to the extension of the current risk management arrangements to provide a Board Assurance 
Framework to facilitate the Audit and Scrutiny Committee in its oversight of risk management arrangements. 

11.9 The members of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee have been provided with training by the IT and Systems Manager on appointment.  This provides an 
oversight of risk management principles and provides a foundation for their scrutiny role. 

Risk Management Strategy 

11.10 A Risk Management Strategy was approved by the Authority in September 2016 as required by the previous internal audit review. 

11.11 .  The date of next review is not currently stated on the Strategy, only that it will be reviewed periodically. 

Operational 

 Effectiveness Matter: 9 

The next planned review date of the Risk Management Strategy be annotated on the face of the document to ensure 
timely review and update. 

11.12 This provides a formal definition of risk and sets out the processes for identifying, analysing and evaluating risks, and the options available for each risk, 
namely Treating, transferring, avoiding or reduction of the risk.  Service Managers are responsible for the identification and delivery of mitigating controls or 
contingency arrangements. 

11.13 The risk appetite is also defined in the strategy which notes that this is a matter for the Members whilst noting that historically there is a relatively low level 
of risk tolerance in recognition of the size of the Authority and its relative vulnerability threshold. 

11.14 There are direct links to the strategic plan for some of the risks, but other risks, particularly the directorate risks are more operational in nature. 

The Risk Register 

11.15 A risk register is maintained by each Directorate; Chief Executive/Corporate Services, Planning and Countryside and Land Management.  These registers 
are recorded on Aspireview (Ffynnon), which retains a history of changes and who made them. The review of the risk register is a standing agenda item at 
monthly Directorate team meetings  It is the responsibility of the Directorates to escalate high risks to the Management Team for further consideration, and 
they in turn will highlight risks to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee.  Changes arising from the CMT review are recorded on the register by the IT and Systems 
Manager. 

11.16 The three by three scoring matrix is adopted in all cases and the Management Team will look across the Directorate Registers as a matter of course while 
reviewing the register and will challenge variations in scoring and ensure that the cores are proportionate.  The previous internal audit report recommended 
that the scoring criteria were defined in greater detail.  It was noted that the high, medium and low definitions remain unchanged, and the Members of the 
Authority considered the scoring to be sufficiently intuitive to not require further definition or expansion.  

11.17 The risk matrix has a range of colours from Dark Green (lowest risk rating), Green, Amber, Red and Dark Red (highest risk rating), highlighting the significance 
of the risks. The colours are also used for reporting purposes. 

P
age 71



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 19 

 

11.18 The register includes a section entitled “event” which allows the risk owner to document if the risk has crystallised or occurred.  The IT and Systems Manager 
stated that a risk may have occurred but this could still be categorised as green on the register, reflecting the impact score.  This element of the register is 
helpful to the Authority as it facilitates a lessons learned particularly from health and safety and complaints. 

11.19 Aspireview (Ffynnon) includes mitigating controls and contingency arrangements in addition to planned actions which include the action owner, the date the 
action was started and completed and a facility to allow comments on progress. 

Reporting 

11.20 The Strategy states that the Audit and Scrutiny Committee receives a report on risk on the highest risks on a quarterly basis and the full register annually.  A 
review of the agenda and minutes of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee confirmed that the register had been presented on only two occasions during 2017/18 
as follows: 

Audit and Scrutiny Committee date Risk register presented 

13th July 2018 No 

27th April 2018 Yes – highest risks 

26th January 2018 No 

20th October 2018 Yes – full register 

21st July 2017 No 

19th June 2017 No – limited agenda meeting 

28th April 2017 No but risk management 
arrangements referenced in Annual 

Governance Statement 

 

Recommendation: 3 A report on the highest risks be presented to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee quarterly as required by the Risk 
Strategy. 

Priority 3 

11.21 The Audit and Scrutiny Committee provide assurance to the Authority on risk management arrangements and this was confirmed to the Annual Governance 
Statement which was presented to the Authority in June 2018.  

11.22 The previous internal audit report identified a number of potential improvements to the risk register and was noted that these had largely been taken on board 
and the register presented to Audit and Scrutiny Committee provided the following information: 

 An extended description of the risk in addition to the title to ensure the risk is clear to the reader; 

 The inclusion of an arrow to indicate the movement in each risk since the previous review; 

P
age 72



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 20 

 

 The controls in place to mitigate the risk and any relevant contingency arrangements; 

 Inclusion of both the inherent and residual (post control) risk; and 

 Comments on date of last review and any changes. 

11.23 Review of the reports to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee indicated that the format of the report presented had changed.  In the October 2017 meeting, all 
risks had been presented for each Directorate.  The April 2018 meeting received a report on the highest risks only, indicating that the presentation of the 
register is evolving to reflect the requirements of the Committee. 

11.24 The format of the most recent report to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee included the current risk score (i.e. the residual risk score) and the target score, 
which reflects the risk appetite of the Authority.  A brief narrative was also provided to indicate when the risk was last reviewed by CMT and to explain any 
changes.  For example, the current scoring of risk 22, “Inadequate general reserves” had been amended to a probability of “Likely” until the agreement of 
the three year budget.  For each of the three risks reported, the mitigation was completed including current work being undertaken to move the risk score 
towards the target scoring. 

 

System: GDPR 

Evaluation Reasonable Assurance 

12. The following matters were identified on an exceptions basis. 

12.1 Data Protection/European Union General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) awareness training has been delivered to Members and a staff awareness 
campaign has been completed. All staff are required to complete the TIAA Information Governance e-learning package by 20th July 2018. Progress in 
completing the package is monitored and it was identified that 85 staff (65%) had completed the package by the 25th June with four members of staff (3%) 
having started the package and 41 staff (32%) not having started the training. 

12.2 A detailed information asset register (IAR) that details all of the electronic and hard copy data held by the Authority that contains personal information is 
being developed. The IAR will become a working document once it has been completed that will be maintained and updated as required. The IAR includes 
documents and databases that contain personal data that have been put together by individuals by extracting data from the Authority's core systems. The 
IAR will be reviewed by the Data Protection Officer (DPO) for completeness to ensure that all relevant information has been identified and assessed. 

12.3 The Authority's main Privacy Notice has been updated and other Privacy Notices are being updated as required including the privacy notices for volunteers 
and the Local Development Plan Team. Privacy Impact Assessments (PIA) have been completed for the Local Development Plan Team. One of the task 
identified for inclusion within the Authorities Data Protection Compliance Plan is to review all of the Local Development Plan Team's policies, procedures and 
processes to ensure that they are fully compliant with the DPA 2018. 

12.4 All requests made under the DPA 2018 individual rights will be made through the Corporate Services Officer. The Authority has reviewed its processes to 
ensure compliance with the reduction in days under the DPA 2018 to complete SAR. The DPO will have oversite of all DP related requests. 

P
age 73



 
 

 

 Brecon Beacons National Park 
Block Review – Quarter 1 

Page 21 

 

12.5 The Authority has historically received very few subject access requests (SAR) and there have been no SAR or requests under the right to be forgotten 
received since the 25th May 2018 when compliance with GDPR became mandatory. 

12.6 The Authority has established that the legal basis for collecting personal information will be either Public Task or contractual for the majority of the personal 
data that it collects. Individual consent will be required for inclusion on mailing lists and a consent requirement is already in place for the use of cookies on 
the Authority's web site. Release forms are being introduced for inclusion on photographs taken at events. 

12.7 The Authority does not process children's information. Information relating to children visiting the National Park during school visit is collected and managed 
by the group's responsible person who advises the authority of the types of risks that the Authority needs to be aware of during the visit but do not identify 
the individuals. For example, the Authority were advised during a recent school trip that two of the visitors suffered from asthma and that one had an allergy 
to peanuts but the individuals were not personally identified as the Authority did not need to know the individual identities to be able to manage the risks. 

12.8 A data breach procedure and process is in place that is fully compliant with the requirements of GDPR to notify any breaches that include personal information 
to the ICO within 72 hours of the data breach being discovered. 

12.9 Discussions with the IT and Systems Manager identified that he is planning on reviewing the Authority's backup and log management arrangements to ensure 
that they fully comply with the DPA 2018 regarding data retention as the oldest backup tape currently held relates to 2012 although it was identified during 
the review that all backup tapes are encrypted preventing access to the data they contain in the event of a backup tape being lost or stolen. 

12.10 The IT and Systems Manager has been appointed as the Authority's Data Protection Officer. The IT and Systems Manager also undertakes the IT 
management role at Pembrokeshire National Parks Authority where he has also been appointed as the Data Protection Officer. These multiple roles will 
inevitably result in potential conflicts of interest and possible resource issues and these will need to be managed by the Authority should they occur. 
Discussions with the Authority’s Chief Executive during this review identified that he was fully aware of the potential for conflicts of interest or resource issues 
and would be the first point of contact for reporting and addressing these should they occur. 

12.11 The United Kingdom Information Commissioner will be the relevant Data Protection Supervisory Authority for the Authority. 

12.12 The Authority had not prepared a Data Protection Act 2018 compliance plan at the time of this review although discussions with the IT and Systems Manager 
identified that work was in process for preparing a compliance plan that would include all outstanding actions necessary for full compliance with the Act 
including linking the Privacy Policy to e-mail disclaimers, reviewing and amending the Data Protection Policy to ensure full compliance with the Act, following 
up on outstanding Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) to ensure that these are completed for all areas where a DPIA has been identified as 
necessary, ensuring that all staff have completed the electronic information governance training package, confirming that appropriate arrangements are in 
place to train new staff at induction and ensuring that appropriate refresher training arrangements are in place for staff and Members, updating the Risk 
Management Policy for data protection related risks, documenting a comprehensive document retention policy, refining and updating the information asset 
register, fully documenting processes for dealing with data subject rights including the right to be forgotten and ensuring all privacy notices are regularly 
reviewed. 

Recommendation: 4 A detailed Data Protection Act 2018 Compliance Plan be documented as intended that details all of the necessary actions 
that need to be completed to ensure full compliance with the Act. 

Priority 2 

--------------- 

P
age 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



 

 

 
2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance 
(SICA)  

January 2019 

 FINAL 

P
age 109



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) 
Page 2 

 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at Brecon Beacons National Park Authority as at 9th January 2019 

SICA report. 

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2018/19 ANNUAL PLAN  

2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2018-19 is set out in Appendix A. 

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  

3. The key strategic governance, risk management and control matters identified from the three reviews completed since the previous SICA are summarised below. 

There are no issues arising from these findings which would require the annual Head of Audit Opinion to be qualified. 

 Key Strategic Governance, Risk Management and Control Matters 

Review High level  

Project Management A robust project management process is in place 

 A standard template Project Initiation Document needs to be developed. 

 All Project Managers or Project Officers need to complete the 'Comments, Outstanding Actions and spending profiling' columns 

within the 2018-2021 Quarterly Summary project spreadsheet. 

 An end of project review process needs to be put in place and documented which includes the identification of lessons learned to 

address for future projects. 

Strategic Control Effective strategic control arrangements were found to be in place with improvements identified in terms of governance. 

 The Member Role Descriptions and Person Specifications need to be reviewed and updated to reflect current arrangements. 

 All Audit and Scrutiny Committee minutes must be presented to the next subsequent Authority meeting. 

Key Financial Controls Adequate key financial controls were found to be in place operating effectively. 

 Budget virements of £50,000 or more must be reported to the next available Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

 A variance analysis check of the net pay for current month against previous month needs to be undertaken and variances over 

£150 be investigated prior to the release of the pay run. 

 A process needs to be established to ensure that conflicts of interests between staff and suppliers are recorded centrally and 

information is presented at Committee level. 

 Staff and Line Management need to be reminded that failure to comply with the Staff Expenses Policy could result in the rejection 

of the claim. 

 Additional Hours Claim forms must be processed only once they have been signed and approved by the relevant Section Head. 

Follow Up The Authority has made very good progress with the completion of recommendations with 10 (71%) being implemented and one 

recommendation (7%) outstanding. Three (21%) recommendations were not implemented as they were deemed to be no longer applicable 

and are therefore closed. 

P
age 110



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) 
Page 3 

 

EMERGING GOVERNANCE, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL RELATED ISSUES 

4. We have identified no emerging risks which could impact on the overall effectiveness of the governance, risk and internal control framework of the organisation.  

AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE 

5. The table below sets out details of audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee. 

  Key Dates 
Number of 

Recommendations 

Review Evaluation Draft issued 
Responses 

Received 
Final issued 1 2 3 OE 

Project Management Reasonable 30/10/2018 12/12/2018 14/12/2018 - 4 2 - 

Strategic Control Reasonable 30/10/2018 12/12/2018 14/12/2018 - 2 3 - 

Key Financial Controls Reasonable 30/10/2018 12/12/2018 14/12/2018 - 5 2 2 

Follow Up NA 30/10/2018 12/12/2018 14/12/2018 NA NA NA NA 

CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2018/19    

6. There have been no changes to the Annual Plan at this time.  All planned audit work has been completed. 

FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES 

7. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last summary report was issued. 

LIAISON 

8. Liaison with external audit: We maintain ongoing communication with the Wales Audit Office. 

PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS 

9. We have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA. 

RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER 

10. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. 

The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No 

responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty 

of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by 

their reliance on our report.  

P
age 111



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) 
Page 4 

 

Appendix A 
 

Progress against the Annual Plan for 2018/19 

 

System 
Planned 

Quarter 
Days 

Revised 

Quarter 
Current Status Comments 

Governance – Performance 

Management 
1 

7 

1 Final report issued 22nd October 2018 

 Risk Management - Overview 1 1 Final report issued 22nd October 2018 

General Data Protection 

Regulations (GDPR) 
1 1 Final report issued 22nd October 2018 

Key Financial Controls 

(Budgetary Control, Payroll and 

Expenses, Fixed Assets)  

3 

9 

3 Final report issued 14th December 2018  

Governance – Strategic Control and 

Corporate Governance 
3 3 Final report issued 14th December 2018  

Project Management 3 3 Final report issued 14th December 2018  

Follow Up 3 3 Final report issued 14th December 2018  

2018/19 Annual Report 4 1 4   

Audit Management & Planning 1 - 4 3 1-4 Ongoing  

   KEY: 

 = To be commenced 

 = Site work commenced 

 = Draft report issued 

 = Final report issued 

 

P
age 112



 

Audit Performance Certificate and Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 Audit and Scrutiny Cttee 

Date 

 

1 February 2019 

Report Author Elaine Standen 

 

Job title 

 

Finance Manager (S151 Officer) 

Contact Details Elaine.standen@beacons-npa.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report To submit the Certificate and Annual letter to the 

Committee for information.  A representative of Wales 

Audit will attend the meeting. 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1 Audit Performance Certificate 

Enclosure 2 Annual Audit Letter  

Recommendation(s) a) That the Committee note the contents of the 

Certificate and Letter. 

 

 

 

1.1 Introduction  

 

Wales Audit is required to write to the Authority on the conclusion of its cycle of annual 

financial accounts audit work and performance audits under the Local Government Measure.  

The two documents enclosed with this report formally confirm that work has been completed.  

The audit findings were reported separately to the Authority earlier in the year.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

a) That the Committee note the contents of the Certificate and Letter. 

 

  

Page 113

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 2 - Audit of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s assessment of 2017-18 

performance 

Reference: 914A2018-19 

Date issued: November 2018 

Audit of Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority’s assessment of 2017-18 performance 

Certificate 

I certify that I have audited Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s (the Authority) 

assessment of its performance in 2017-18 in accordance with section 17 of the Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure) and my Code of Audit Practice.  

As a result of my audit, I believe that the Authority has discharged its duties under 

sections 15(2), (3), (8) and (9) of the Measure and has acted in accordance with Welsh 

Government guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties. 

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and the Auditor 

General 

Under the Measure, the Authority is required to annually publish an assessment which 

describes its performance: 

• in discharging its duty to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in 

the exercise of its functions; 

• in meeting the improvement objectives it has set itself;  

• by reference to performance indicators specified by Welsh Ministers, and self-

imposed performance indicators; and 

• in meeting any performance standards specified by Welsh Ministers, and self-

imposed performance standards. 

The Measure requires the Authority to publish its assessment before 31 October in the 

financial year following that to which the information relates, or by any other such date as 

Welsh Ministers may specify by order. 

The Measure requires that the Authority has regard to guidance issued by Welsh 

Ministers in publishing its assessment.  

As the Authority’s auditor, I am required under sections 17 and 19 of the Measure to carry 

out an audit to determine whether the Authority has discharged its duty to publish an 

assessment of performance, to certify that I have done so, and to report whether I believe 

that the Authority has discharged its duties in accordance with statutory requirements set 

out in section 15 and statutory guidance.  

  

Page 115



Page 2 of 2 - Audit of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s assessment of 2017-18 

performance 

Scope of the audit 

For the purposes of my audit work I will accept that, provided an authority meets its 

statutory requirements, it will also have complied with Welsh Government statutory 

guidance sufficiently to discharge its duties.  

For this audit I am not required to form a view on the completeness or accuracy of 

information. Other assessment work that I will undertake under section 18 of the Measure 

may examine these issues. My audit of the Authority’s assessment of performance, 

therefore, comprised a review of the Authority’s publication to ascertain whether it 

included elements prescribed in legislation. I also assessed whether the arrangements for 

publishing the assessment complied with the requirements of the legislation, and that the 

Authority had regard to statutory guidance in preparing and publishing it. 

The work I have carried out in order to report and make recommendations in accordance 

with sections 17 and 19 of the Measure cannot solely be relied upon to identify all 

weaknesses or opportunities for improvement. 

 

Adrian Crompton  

Auditor General for Wales 

CC:  Alun Davies AM, Cabinet Secretary for Local Government and Public Services 

 Nick Selwyn, Manager 

Page 116



 

Page 1 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Mr Julian Atkins – Chief Executive  
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Plas y Ffynnon  
Cambrian Way  
Brecon  
Powys 
LD3 7HP 

Reference: 965A2018-19 
Date issued: 30 November 2018 

Dear Julian 

Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 
This letter summarises the key messages arising from my statutory responsibilities under the 
Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and my reporting responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice. 

The Authority complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and 
use of resources 
It is the Authority’s responsibility to: 
• put systems of internal control in place to ensure the regularity and lawfulness of 

transactions and to ensure that its assets are secure;  
• maintain proper accounting records; 
• prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant requirements; and 
• establish and keep under review appropriate arrangements to secure economy,  

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
The Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 requires me to: 
• provide an audit opinion on the accounting statements; 
• review the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources; and 
• issue a certificate confirming that I have completed the audit of the accounts. 
  

Page 117

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/


Page 2 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 

I issued an unqualified audit opinion on 14 August 2018 

Local authorities in Wales prepare their accounting statements in accordance with the 
requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom. This code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards. On 25 September 
2018 I issued an unqualified audit opinion on the accounting statements confirming that they 
present a true and fair view of the Authority’s financial position and transactions. The key matters 
arising from the accounts audit were reported to the Authority in my Audit of Financial Statements 
report on 21 September 2018. 
From 2018-19, the statutory deadline for publication of audited accounts will be brought forward to 
31 July. We have worked with the Authority’s finance team over the past few years to bring forward 
the completion of our audit work and anticipate meeting the earlier deadline for 2018-19. We will 
discuss the target completion and approval timetable with the finance team as part of our planning 
for the 2018-19 audit.    

I am satisfied that the Authority has appropriate arrangements in place to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

My consideration of the Authority’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
has been based on: 
• audit work undertaken on the annual accounts; 
• audit work completed by the Auditor General under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 

2009 (the Measure);  
• audit work undertaken in response to questions or objections to the accounts raised by 

electors under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004; and 
• a review of the Authority’s overall financial position. 

Work undertaken under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 

The Auditor General reports on his responsibilities under the Measure in his Annual Improvement 
Report. He published the 2018 report on 14 March 2018. This report highlights areas where the 
effectiveness of these arrangements could be improved. Although no formal recommendations for 
improvement were made, the Auditor General highlighted some proposals for improvement that 
need to be progressed in the current year. 

Electors’ questions and objections  

I received no formal questions or objections to the 2017-18 accounts. 

Overall financial position 

The Authority’s retained reserves have increased significantly, over the past two years, as a 
consequence of unexpected additional Welsh Government grants received at the year-end. The 
challenge for the Authority in the medium term is application of these grants within the context of 
reduced core funding. Careful consideration of reserves balances and how they might be used to 
support financial plans is particularly important as it is not sustainable to rely on reserves to 
support ongoing costs. Once reserves have been deleted, other sources of funds or efficiencies 
must be identified. Further detail of my analysis is included in the appendix to this letter. 

Page 118



Page 3 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 

I issued a certificate confirming that the audit of the accounts has been completed 
on 25 September 2018 
I received no electors’ questions or objections in relation to the 2017-18 audit. Having given an 
audit opinion on the financial statements and concluded on the Authority’s arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, I was able to certify that the audit 
was complete when I issued my audit opinion.  
The financial audit fee for 2017-18 is currently expected to be in line with the agreed fee set out in 
the Annual Audit Plan. 
Yours sincerely 

 
Anthony Veale 
For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales 

cc Elaine Standen – Finance Officer 

    

Page 119



Page 4 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 

Appendix: Overall financial position 
Austerity funding remains the most significant challenge facing all national park authorities in 
Wales. Although the Welsh Government announced in July 2018 that funding for national parks 
would continue at the same level as 2017-18, these financial pressures are likely to continue for 
the medium term.  
In 2017-18, the Authority generated a surplus on the provision of services of £667,000 (2016-17 
£1,025,000).  
Exhibit 1 below identifies that the Authority’s core funding of national park grant and levy has 
reduced significantly since 2013-14. The impact of the annual reductions has been offset in 2016-
17 and 2017-18 by additional Welsh Government grant awards received at the end of the financial 
year. 

Exhibit 1 Core funding and additional grants 

Core funding by national park grant and levy has reduced by over £569,000 million since 2013-14. 
This has been offset by additional grant funding received at the end of 2016-17 and 2017-18 

 

On the basis that the additional grant funds were unplanned, the Authority’s reserves have 
increased in 2016-17 and 2017-18. These funds are held as earmarked reserves until they are 
applied to finance expenditure.  
  

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

£'
00

0

National Park Grant Levy Additional grant funds

Page 120



Page 5 of 5 - Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18 

Exhibit 2 Usable reserves 

Usable reserves have increased by over £1.9 million between 2015-16 and 2017-18 due to 
additional grant funding in 2016-17 and 2017-18 

 
 
Careful consideration of reserves balances and how they might be used to support financial plans 
is particularly important as it is not sustainable to rely on reserves to support ongoing costs. Once 
reserves have been deleted, other sources of funds or efficiencies must be identified. The 
challenge for the Authority is to how to use reserves generated by unexpected grant receipts in the 
context of a reduced core budget. 
We will continue to monitor the Authority’s financial position and how it plans to utilise these 
reserves.  
 
 

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

£'
00

0

General fund Other usable reserves

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 COMPLIMENTS LIST           Date:  15th January 2019 

NO DATE COMMENTS 
27 27/11/2018 Email received - Back in the spring we contacted you with reference to some dangerous and non dog friendly stiles on the 

lower slopes of Table Mountain, on map 161, grid reference 199222 and 203211. We walked this route last week, and it was 
such a pleasure, as all the stiles have been replaced with gates. Just wanted you to pass on thanks to the rangers concerned 
(Sam Ridge), as this has made this popular circular walk much more accessible, especially to those with dogs. 
See you soon, and thanks again 
 

26 17/11/2018 Email received from a member of the public stating he was fortunate enough to meet the wardens Rhys Powell, Richard 
Farquhar for erecting a new stile and re-opening the footpath at Y Byddwny and saw the end product.  He was very much 
appreciate that the work done and so thank you for making this a priority as now I can concentrate on erecting a sign to the 
nature reserve itself. 
 

25 15/11/2018 Great News with  Crickhowell High-street winning Best High Street in Wales  

24 23/10/2018 Thank you email from Ysgol Bae Baglan - The visit was great, made even better by the weather and the company 
of Hayley and Peter.  Thanks ever so much!   
  
My view on the funding was without the funding from you on the bus, we would not be able to justify the cost of 
the £6 visit and close to the same for the bus.  So it went a long way to helping the visit going ahead.   
 

23  Thank you letter from South & Mid Wales Cave Rescue Team for the donation of £60 from the sale of logs at Porth Yr Ogof. 

22 25/09/2018 Thank you letter to Richard Farquar from South & Mid Wales Cave Rescue Team for the donation of money from the sale of 
logs at Cwm Porth. 

21 24/09/2018 Year 1 pupils in Sennybridge Primary school wrote to BBNPA requesting help regarding a Right of Way that runs through the 
school grounds. They were having issues with walkers and their dogs, who whilst using the footpath were allowing their pets 
to roam though their forest school area - inevitably leaving their own less favourable trail! 
Our Princes Trust trainees were happy to  assist - they cleared over grown areas of bramble, made good existing fencing, 
installed a gate and handrail encouraging walkers to stick to the path, created a bench and donated the ‘bug hotel’ they had 
made as a demonstration model during the Prince Charles visit in July. 
  
We have just received a pile of letters from the class thanking us. 

P
age 123

A
genda Item

 12



20 08/09/2018 Email received thanking Francesca Bell for the BBNPA Community Update quoting “great read, really enjoyed the update!  As 
a school bordering the National Park it was particularly relevant”. 

19 14/09/2018 Email received to thank the educational staff for the informative talk and an excellent walk which highlighted lots of issues 
that will be covered within the students in class during their visit to the National Park Visitor Centre. 

18 11/09/2018 Letter received from the Minister for Environment thanking for the invite to visit the Black Mountain Land Use Partnership at 
the Royal Welsh Show.  She stated that it was encouraging to see the range and extent of the land management activates 
currently underway improving the natural resources and increasing the resilience of the Black Mountains.  
They were especially pleased to hear about the programme of educational outreach into the local schools and the value being 
on health and wellbeing opportunities.  

17 20/08/2018 Letter received thanking Clare Brookes thanking her for her assistance in relation to enforcement case  

16 20/08/2018 Email received thanking Paul Sinnadurai, Sunita Welch and Sam Ridge from the Chief Executive from Honourable Artillery 
Company for leading them around HAC Estate Penceli Walk. The Trustees learned a great deal with the insights into every 
aspect of the Estate. 

15 17/08/2018 Email received from member of the public thanking staff for the surfacing and drainage work that have been carried out on 
the Y Gaer Bridleway. The work has been done is fantastic and makes it a much more pleasant walk. 

14 26/07/2018 Email received from a member on the ambassador’s course thanking Carol Williams and Staff for all the hard work in putting 
the course on.  It was not only informative for them, but from the connections they made has led to regular work with the 
Storey Arms and Sennybridge training camp as an outdoor leader and instructor, which has been a really positive experience 
for them.  It really helped them to meet new people and set up connections just when my confidence was waning after 
leaving the armed forces.  
 

13 20/07/2018 Email from Sport Wales thanking Francesca Bell and Alan Bowring for leading a Geocaching activity at the Vision for Sport in 
Wales launch in Garwnant 19.7.18 

12 11/07/2018 Hay Bluff Guided Walk – Free Visits - The experience you provided was invaluable, the children really did get so much from 
the walk at the Bluff. The class teacher, asked children to complete the evaluation. 
Many thanks to all involved for an incredible opportunity you provided for our pupils. 

11 11/07/2018 Compliments thanking Trainees for all their hard work at Cwm Porth replacing changing screens, picnic tables, path clearance 

10 06/07/2018 Email from Princes-trust to staff thanking all who were involved in the HRH visit  

9 03/07/2018 Email from Chairman thanking Jean Packer for all her help and support over the last three years  

8 27/06/2018 Email thanking the Education Staff for the lovely trip from St Mary Primary School, Cardiff 

7 11/06/2018 Thank you email received from Hay Festival  for working in partnership with them and thanking BBNPA colleagues who made 
the walks a joy for  

6 01/06/2018 Some compliments from The Skills in Action scheme trainees 
 

P
age 124



1. The support given from the BBNP staff was incredible and they really set the bar high with their work ethic. I couldn’t 
be any more grateful for the opportunities provided by the scheme and everyone at the Brecon Beacons National 
Park  (Gavin Vella former trainee) 

2. I feel so sad to leave but so happy as its been such a positive experience. Ceri has been an amazing Coordinator. 
Thank you for the opportunity (Sarah Ogilvie former trainee) 

3. “Dear Ceri, Clare, Fran and Communities team. This traineeship has been brilliant. I’ve been so many places, gotten to 
really know the Park and am now getting interviews for jobs I couldn’t even apply for before. Thank you for your hard 
work. Sarah” 

 
 

5 01/06/2018 A big thank you to everyone to mark the end of a very successful Skills In Action project led by BBNPA. Clare Parsons, Ceri 
Bevan, Nick Jones, Paul Chapman, Judith Harvey, Liz Lewis and all the Wardens and other colleagues and Partners for 
providing a wide range of work. 

4 16/05/2018 Thanking ROW and Wardens for the speedy repair on gate/access which was reported to the Authority.  Walkers no longer 
has to take big step up onto footbridge and the gravel will make a great difference when the ground is wt. 

3 25/04/2018 Email thanking Jayne Rees and Ceril Bevan in arranging a student PHd study poster and questionnaire to be  

2 23/04/2018 Email received from a member of the public through enquiries thanking for all the work BBNPA are doing in the Black 
Mountains. They stated that while they were walking the Southern section of Offas Dyke last week they were really 
impressed with the access and it was brilliant to see the bog restoration taking place. They appreciate that upland work can 
be hard going so thank you to everyone who has been involved in this valuable project. 

1 22/04/2018 Email received from Priory CIW School thanking Hayley Sharpe, Staff at the school spoke very highly and the children loved 
the day. 

 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments since last Management Team  

 

P
age 125



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Scrutiny Committee  

Complaints 

Date:  1st April 2018 – 15th January 2019 

 
 

 

 

TOTAL 

 

OPEN 

 

CLOSED 

 

COMMENTS 

 
 

Total Number of 

complaints 

 

 
23 

 
4 

 
20 

 

3 within timescale 

1 still ongoing, outside 

timescale  

 

Acknowledged 

within 5 working 

days 

 

 

Yes:  23 

No:     

 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

Responded within 

20 working days 

 

Yes:  18 

No:   2 

 

 
3 

 

N/A 
 

 

Stage II requests 

 

Stage II declined 

 

 
0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

 

 
 

 

Upheld 

Not Upheld 

Partial  

Ongoing 

 

 

4 

14 

2 

3 

 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

N/A 

 
 

 

EX- Gratia 

Payments 

 

0 

 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 
 

 

BREAKDOWN IN  

DEPARTMENTS 

    

 

Planning 

Department 

 

 

       11 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

 

Countryside 

 

 

11 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 
 

 

CEO Department 

 

 

       1 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 
 

 

NOT SPECIFIED 

 

 

0 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 
 

 

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Audit & Scrutiny Committee  

SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS 

1st April 2018– 15th January 2019 

 
NO: 

 

 
Summary of Complaint 

 
Date received 

 
Date responded 

 
Responded 

within  20 w/d 
timescale 

 
Complaint 

upheld 

 
Department 
responsible 

23 Complaint - in relation to the way BBNPA has treated the 
complainant  
 

21/12/2018 15/01/2019 YES Not Upheld Planning 

22 Complaint in relation to awkward obstructive stiles  
 

04/01/2019 Ongoing   Countryside 

21 Complaint against a senior member of Staff 
 

17/11/2018 Ongoing   Corporate  

20 Complaint about Fox Hunting in the Brecon Beacons National 
Park 
 

19/11/2018 21/11/2018 YES Not Upheld Countryside 

19 Complaint received in relation to the protocol of a site 
meeting at Upper Cantref  
 

12/11/2018 04/12/2018 YES Partially 
upheld 

Planning 

18 Complaint received about a member of staff in planning 
about their unreasonable and obstructive behaviour  

08/11/2018 14/12/2018 YES Not Upheld Planning 

17 Complaint against officers of the Authority  02/11/2018 Ongoing  NO  Countryside 

16 Complaint received in relation to a warden driving one of our 
vehicles who hadn’t connected the trailer lights properly, 
causing it to be dragged along the road  

25/09/2018 12/10/2018 YES Upheld Countryside 

15 Complaint in relation to lack of communication from 
Planning department 
 

07/09/2018 12/10/2018 YES – with an 
extension 

time 

Partially 
upheld  

Planning 

P
age 129



 

 

14 Complaint relating to the handling of planning application  
 

01/09/2018 05/10/2018 YES – with an 
extension 

time 

Not Upheld Planning  

13 Complaint about litter around Llanvihangel, Crucorney 
 

21/08/2018 17/09/2018 YES Not Upheld Countryside 

12 Complaint about a member of staff 01/08/2018 16/08/2018 YES Not Upheld Countryside 

11 Complaint in relation to Enforcement case about how it’s 
being dealt with. 

26/07/2018 23/08/2018 YES Not Upheld Planning 

10 Complaint about Abergavenny Tourist Information Centre 
staff being aggressive.  This was then withdrawn  

27/07/2018 CLOSED N/A N/A Countryside 

9 Complaint about litter around Llanvihangel, Crucorney 27/07/2018 16/08/2018 YES Not Upheld Countryside 

8 Complaint in which the Planning department has dealt with 
unauthorised development 

23/07/2018 17/08/2018 YES Not Upheld Planning 

7 Complaint in relation to a Bull along with 7 cows on Common 
land to Brynamman  

19/06/2018 16/7/2018 YES Not Upheld Countryside  

6 Concerns about size of a silver birch tree that a neighbour is 
not maintaining and there is a risk in high winds.  It blocks 
light to their property  
 

13/05/2018 15/06/2018 NO Not Upheld Planning 

5 Complaint relating to development at Coelbren  Commercial 
Campsite 
 

27/04/2018 25/5/2018 YES Not Upheld Planning 

4 Complaint - approval of planning application without 
consulting or notifying a neighbour.   

26/04/2018 11/05/2018 YES Not Upheld Planning  

3 Complaint – Customer tried to purchase maps on line and 
kept getting error messages. 
 

22/04/2018 23/04/2018 YES Upheld Countryside 

2 Complaint -Disclosure of Personal details  
 

25/04/2018 10/05/2018 YES Upheld Countryside 

1 Concerns with outsourcing NPVC 03/04/2018 23/04/2018 YES Upheld  Countryside 

N.B- Columns coloured yellow are new Complaints received and updates since last Meeting  

P
age 130



 

 

 

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Scrutiny Committee  

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION   

1st April 2018 – 15th January 2019 

 
 

 

 

TOTAL 

 

OPEN 

 

CLOSED 

 

EXTENSION 

OF TIME  

 

COMMENTS 

 

 

Total Number of FOI 

 

 

 

15 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

14 

 

 

 

 

 

Acknowledged within 5 

working days 

 

 

YES: 15 

NO:    

 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

 

 

Responded within 20 

working days 

 

YES: 14 

NO:     

 

 

1 

 

N/A 

 

 

N/A 

 

 

One still open, still within 

timescale 

 

Internal Reviews  

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Access Request 

 

0 

 

 

0 

 

0 

 

  

 

P
age 133



T
his page is intentionally left blank



[Type text] 1 [Type text] 

Audit & Scrutiny Committee  

SUMMARY OF FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUESTS 

1st April 2018 – 15th January 2019 

 

N.B- Columns coloured yellow are new FOI requests and updates since last Meeting  

 
Number 

 

 
Nature of Freedom of Information Request 

 
Date Received 

 
Date responded 

Responded 
within 

timescale 
15 FOI request on information on LDP 09/01/2019 Ongoing  

14 FOI Request on money spent on Christmas gifts, leaving presents and office 
celebrations 

26/11/2018 12/12/2018 YES 

13 FOI request on sexual harassment within BBNPA 14/11/2018 04/12/2018 YES 

12 FOI request on planning application  01/11/2018 22/11/2018 YES 

11 EIR request on Twll Du Entrance to the cave known as Ogof Draenen 12/10/2018 09/11/2018 YES 

10 FOI request for telecoms information 13/08/2018 31/08/2018 YES 

9 FOI request for ICT expenditure  06/08/2018 30/08/2018 YES 

8 FOI request on how many non-UK EU national currently work at our organisation  16/07/2018 08/08/2018 YES 

7 FOI request in relation to the planning department 15/07/2018 02/08/2018 YES 

6 FOI request on a tender on Animation Services  05/06/2018 25/06/2018 YES 

5 FOI request for speculative planning applications  01/06/2018 22/06/2018 YES 

4 Request for information for conditions for Forest Holidays, Garwnant 08/05/2018 22/5/2018 YES 

3 Request for information on Holiday Static Caravan Site within the BBNPA 03/05/2018 23/05/2018 YES 

2 FOI request for Authority Organisation Structure showing name of post and pay 
grade Pay grade chart showing range of pay for each grade 
Copies of current job descriptions for all posts 

03/05/2018 24/5/2018 YES 

1 request for information relating to: 

 development for agricultural use on coelbren, Llandyfan,   

 information on members of staff 

27/04/2018 21/05/2018 YES 

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Registers of Gifts and Hospitality:  Members and Officers 

 

Name of 

Committee 

 Audit and Scrutiny Committee  

Date 

 

1 February 2019 

Report Author Julia Gruffydd  

 

Job title 

 

Democratic Services Manager  

Contact Details Julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of Report To provide details of gifts and hospitality offered to members 

and officers 

 

Single Integrated 

Assessment 
N/A 

List of  Enclosures Enclosure 1: Member Register (Page 1) 

Enclosure 2:  Member Register (Page 2) 

Enclosure 3:  Member Register (Page 3) 

Enclosure 4:  Officer Register 

Public Interest Test N/A 

Recommendation To note the Registers of Gifts and Hospitality for 

Members and Officers in line with Internal Audit 

recommendations. 

 

 

1.1 Introduction or Background 

 
During the last block of internal audits (under the Strategic Controls heading) it was 

recommended that the Register of Gifts and Hospitality be reported to the Audit and 

Scrutiny Committee.  Members are required to log any offers of hospitality and gifts 

however small the monetary value (zero threshold). 

1.2 Proposals 

 

Page 137

Agenda Item 13

mailto:Julia.gruffydd@beacons-npa.gov.uk


The frequency of reporting was not specified but it is suggested that this be done on an 

annual basis in future.  It is also suggested that as the Authority holds a separate register 

for members and officers, that both registers are presented to the committee. 

 

Members are aware that all member declarations are made online through Modern.gov 

as well as being entered in the hard copy register brought to every meeting.  This means 

that the information logged is readily available to the public in the interests of openness 

and transparency. 

 

1.3 Implications 

 

Bringing such a report to the Audit and Scrutiny Committee will comply with the 

recommendation from the Internal Auditors. 

 

1.4 Risk 

 

There is a risk of any lack of action being highlighted in future internal audit reports 

which would need to be reported in the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

1.5 Conclusion 

 

Members are asked to note the report. 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To note the Registers of Gifts and Hospitality for 

Members and Officers in line with Internal Audit recommendations. 

  

Page 138



P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 145



P
age 146



P
age 147



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Minutes of ASC in AGM 30 July
	5 Action Tracking
	7 Budget Monitoring Q3 2018/19
	Enc. 1 for Budget Monitoring Q3 2018/19
	Enc. 2 for Budget Monitoring Q3 2018/19
	Enc. 3 for Budget Monitoring Q3 2018/19

	8 Corporate Plan Performance Report for Quarter 3
	Corporate Plan performance report q3 2018/19

	9 Risk Register Update quarter 3
	High Risks overview q3 2018/19

	10 Internal Audit update and reports
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit update and reports
	Enc. 2 for Internal Audit update and reports
	Enc. 3 for Internal Audit update and reports

	11 Audit Performance Certificate 2017/18
	Enc. 1 for Audit Performance Certificate 2017/18
	Enc. 2 for Audit Performance Certificate and Annual Audit Letter 2017/18
	Annual Audit Letter Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 2017-18
	The Authority complied with its responsibilities relating to financial reporting and use of resources
	I issued an unqualified audit opinion on 14 August 2018
	I am satisfied that the Authority has appropriate arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
	Work undertaken under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
	Electors’ questions and objections
	Overall financial position


	I issued a certificate confirming that the audit of the accounts has been completed on 25 September 2018
	Appendix: Overall financial position



	12 Compliments/Complaints/Freedom of Information
	Complaints
	Complaints Summary
	Freedom of Information
	Freedom of Information - Summary

	13 Gifts and Hospitality Registers:  Members and Officers
	Enc. 1 Member Register Page 1
	Enc. 2 Member Register Page 2
	Enc. 3 Member Register Page 3
	Staff Gifts and Hospitality Register REDACTION


